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For Clarks, the enduring strength of
our brand allied with slowly improving
market conditions and the continued
commitment of our employees and
trading partners, means we can

look back on a year of significant
achievement.

This annual report reviews 2009 and
anticipates turther meaningful steps,
not only in the Group'’s financial
periormance but in the successiul
evolution of its business plan.
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Results at

a Glance
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Summary of
Trading Results
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Activities




Chairman'’s
Statement

The vear ended January 2010

has been another successful year
for your Company. The Group's
financial performance remained
pleasingly robust despite the
ongoing effects of the global
recession. lotal sales grew by

4.6% to £1.17bn, whilst operciting
profits before exceptional charges
rose by 4.4% to £97.4m. As detailed
in the Chief Executive's report,
management made good progress
in improving the profitability in the
Group However, we incurred a
large increase in the imputed cost
of financing our UK pension deficit,
resulting in a small reduction in
pre-tax profits from £86.8m last year
to £85 Im, and a fall in earnings per
share from 102.6 pence per share in
2008/9 to 101.6 pence.

Our balance sheet and cash flow position this year aie
stronger than for many years Whilst the good trading results
have played a part in this 1n addition we have been more
conservative in our capital investrment plans in relation to
stores and projects, and have also achieved tightel contiol
of working capital across thebusiness Togetherthese factors
have resulted in a net posiive cash flow of £106 9m

Our normal modest year end borrowings have been
replacedwithapositve cashbalance of £77 4m, aturnaround
of more than £10hm compered with last year The Group's
return on year end capital employed has also gone up from
210% 10 27 6%

In last year's statement, | said that | expected ecanomic
tecovery around the world to be slow and weak end | sea na
reason to be more optimisticthis year Many of the countnes
where we trade are struggling with significant budqget
deficits and high levels of unemployment We remaim
cautious but confident that our strategy (s sound and that
managernent continue to make yood progress in delivenng
the key mitiatives

Dunng the year, | announced that Peter Bolliger would be
retinng this year and that a process to idenniy his successor
as Chief Executive was under way The Nominations
Committee considered a stiong lield of candidates and !
was delighted o be akle 1© announce, in January, that
Melissa Potter had been appomted as the new Chiof
Executive Mehssa jomned Clarks in 1988 as a graduste
trainee and has developed her career through roles in
manufactunng andretail Sheled the children’s business for
three years before mowving 10 head up UK Operations
Melissa played a key role in the successful implementation
of SAP and in 2006 was appointed to the Board as Managing
Director of the combined UK and International busmaess
I amn sure that you will all join me 1n wishing Melissa every
success In her new role

Peter Bolliger joined Clarks in 1994 and became Chief
Executve in 2002 in hus 14 years with the Company Peter
has overseen the transfer of manufactuning eperations
from the UK, the transformaucn of our UK retail oparation
into the market leader, the investment in the modernsation
of our infrastructure and systems and the launch of the
vision for Clarks to become a global brand Peter has also
keen instrumental in helping develop a stiang internal
candidate as his successor Ris fitting that Peter retires at
a time when the Group’s Balance Sheet 15 strong, the sales
and profits are robust and the dvidend and the dividand
cover are healthy



ThisyearsAnnual General Meeting also marks the retirement
from the Board of Hamet Hall as Non Executive Director
and Deputy Chairman Harniet has been on the Board since
May 1999 and before that was Chairman of the Farmily
Shareholder Council for six years | would hke to thank
Harnet for her contribuuon and dedication and to wish her
well in the future The Board will miss Harriet's expenence
and wise counsel Tim Campbell has been nominated by
the Family Counal as Hammets successor as Non Executive
Duector, and his formal election to the Board takes place at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting Stanley Kravetz
will also be retinng from the Board ahead of this year's
Annual General Meeting  Stanley joined the Board as a
Non Executive Director in May 2007 and since that time the
Group has made significant progress in the development
and implemantation of its strategy of international growth
! would like to thank Stanley for his contnbution and
commitment tw the Board dunng this penod

At last year's Annual General Meeting the Board sought
shareholder approvalfor a three year cycle of share buybacks
of between 1% and 2% of the ssued share capital per year
A 1% buy back was completed in July 2009 and reported on
in the half year report Approval for the second year's
buyback programme will be sought at this year's Annual
General Meetng

The final dividend due for payment in Aprd 2010 has been
set by the Board at 20 O pence per share Togethar with
the interim payment of 8 0 pence, this will make a
combined annual dividend of 28 0 pence per share, 1 8%
above last year At thislevel, the dvidend is conered 37 times
In zddition, in recagniuion of the Group's continued strong
trading perfonnance and the strength of its balance sheet
and cash position the Board has resolved to make a one-
off spucial dividend payment this year of 100 pence per
share This payment will be made before the normal final
dividend at the end of March including the special
dividend, the aggregate ofthe three dividend distnbutions
for the year of 38 0 pence per share results in 2 drnadend
cover of 2 7 times

Peter Davies
Chairman

24th March 2010




Chief Executive's
Report

Viewed in the round, the past

year presents a story of persistently
challenging trading conditions
across all our major markets cnd
distribution channels However as
the global economy has begun to
emerge slowly and uncertainly
from recession, so the first signs of
improvement in business conditions
have become apparent. In North
America in particular, where our
fortunes have been dented most
strongly over the past two years,

we have benefited from a more
stable trend in market demond

and a measure of recovery in
consumer confidence. The Group
has consequently enjoyed a strong
second half, with record profits in
Clarks International and a much
improved position in North America.
I am pleased to be able to look back
on ayear of solid achievement in
2009/10, a year marked by continued
progress in the execution of our
business strategy and by further
advances in both top-line sales

and operating earnings.
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Group sales rose by 4 6% to £1 17bn This giowth was
flattered somewhat by the positive imnact of exchange
translation on our reported US turnover, since undetlying
Group sales would have been level with the provious year at
consistent 1ates of exchange Operating profits before
exceptional charges grew i hne with turnover, advencing
by 4 4% from £93 3m in 2008/9 to £97 4m kxchange
translation again played some partin this, contributing a
positive £3 bm in the form of enhanced US prolits when
compared with those profits translated at the average
Dollar-Pound rate prevailing in the preceding year However
as highlighted in my half-year report, the influence of
exchange rates on our reported earnings has not been
entrely benign since we have seen the partial revetsal of
previcusly realised spor rate retranslation gains on Dollar
denommnated assets and Euro habihties, producing a net
exchange loss of £5 1m in the current financial year

We have recognised an exceptional charge of £3 3m m the
profit and loss account relating to the costs of offering a
voluntary redundancy programme in North Amernica Thisis
offset by an exceptionat profit of £3 8m on the disposal of ¢
thirteen-acre tranche of land on the Houndwood site in
Street, the second phase of a long-term project for
promoting environmentally sustainable housing
development on the site The resultant increase of 54% in
profit before interest 15 howaver emtirely absorbed by a
sharp rise \n interest costs Although the trend i borrowings
has been much lower than normal and our external iInterest
costs have fallen, the imputed cest of financing the UK
pension fund deficit has escalated from 4 5m in the
previous year to £11 8m This :ncrease results from
independent actuanial assumptions about the expected
return on assets in the scheme and the mierest on net
scheme habilites, the latter based on a discountrate det ved
from hugh guelity corporate bonds Past-tax profits have
consequently reduced from £62 Om i 2008/9 to {60 8m this
year, with garmings per share alsc edging lower from 102 6
pence to 101 6 pence i1 seems a ittle unfortunate that the
good progress achieved n footwear profits has been
negated, in terms ol shareholder roturs, by the legacy
costs associated with pension provision




The Group’s balance sheet and cash flow position have
conhinued to stiengthen Vigorous actior has been taken to
mitigate any stock 1isks ansing fiorm softer market demand
50 that working capitel hes reduced by almost 2 quarter
compared with last year At the same time our appioach to
capntal imgstrnent has naturally been more conservative in
an uncertain trading environment, both in relation 16 stores
and infrastructure projects, with the result that fixed assets
have: also been on a reduung trend With these features
prominent capital employed ended the year at £353 1m,
20 4% below 2008/9 On the strength of tius reduction
combined with gur improved trading performance the
Group's rewrn on year end capital employed has increased
appreciably, from 21 0% 10 27 6%

Our net cash flow for the year was a positive £106 9m, a
figure urpaalleled in the recent history of the Cempany and
which 1s rnoreover stated alter absorbing a planned pension
deficit funding contnbution of £20 3m Whilst the pattern of
aur et berrowings has tended to be relatively stable and
would normally produce a modest level of debt at the end
of January, our current belance sheet reflects a net cash
positive of £77 4m My expedaon is that our borrowing
wevels will revert to a rrore normalised pattern as our
investiment in working capdal and canital expenditure picks
up over the coming montns in response to renewed tracking
growth | am pleased dhiat the Boaerd has resclved to poy an
additonal special dividend to shareholders in recogniton of
tris excellent balance sheet and casn fluw positon

The following sections lighhight some of the key factors
which influeced our trading resudts i Clarks Intermational

and North Ametica

Clarks International

The econormicclimate has changedittle, inils fundamentals,
from those | have descnbed in previous reports Whilst the
UK high street has beon marked by consurmer caution and
intensified plice competiticn, n many of ou international
wholesale markets customers have proved reluctant to
make forward order commitments in the face of tightening
credit conditions and a weaker sales out performance To
delver real and protitabletrading growthun this environiment
has remained truly challenging It has demanded a
detarmined focus on maxrmsrg opporturities across all
distributien channels together with great vigilance in
rmanaging costs | am dalighted 1o report that in spite of an
overall decline of 4 7% in pairs sold, the division moieased
rts ncttumover by 1 4% and that operating profits improve d
by 26 6% from L74 4m i the previaus year to {94 2m
{ would like 1o thank Melssa Potter and het tearmn for this
hugely mpresaive ac hievernent

The cornerstone of our effors has been continued market
leadership inthe UK footwear retall sector raunded on owr
dormunant brand posibion and the endunng success of our
children’s school shoe offer, the retall dvisior delivered
romparative store sales growth of +0 6% This was well
belov the BRC sector index of +5 5%, which we ¢onuider
was strongly influenced by mgh levels of promotienal
activity fn contrast our own achievaed retail rmargms held up
well, average prices rose by 4 7% on the strength of a mere
prermium product mix and some select se categon, »rice
changes whilst cash magin also advanced by 7 6% on the
previous year Strong operational standards and offective
controt of lixed costs also played animportant part, helping
to drive ratall profitabyihty up by more than 6% m companson
with 2008/9

Our other main dstnbution channels in the UK and Republic
of Ireland have experenced mixed fortunes Conditions
facing wholesale customers have been notably challonging,
with major accounts such as Bramtano running well below
historic order volumes and the independent sector held
down by weaker market demand and contnuwng conceins
over credht avastability The Insh Republic has pioved a
particularly tough market for us in the face of mdespre.d
economic turmeoil, resulting 1in despatches to Lire
ndependent customers falling oy more than 20% on laat
year and comparatne salss performance in owned stoios
averaging -136% In aggregate our UK and Eire vholesalo
despatch volune dechined by 77 7%, howevar the ongoing
benefit of a positve product sales mix and strong average
nrices served to cushion the impast on the battom hne so
that controfleble profits fell less severely iy 114 ’'m
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Chief Executive's
Report

Continued

In contrast, | am pleased with the encouraging progress of
our new mikti-channel retalling cperation i s first full year
Taking together the orders delivered direct to bome and
those collected by customers from stores, this business
generated volume of mcre than 600,000 pairs worth £20 7m
i sales value and £6 9m in profit, a return which considarably
outstnpped our inttial expectations Key opeiational metrics
such 15 site visitor numbers, conversion and returns rates all
beat targets In confirmation of this success we were
deserved reuptents of an industry sector award as mulf-
channel retarler of the year

I tatal across all our distribution channels we succeeded in
protecting the profriability of our UK and Republic of freland
operations despite the demanding economic conditions
Although pairage sales fell in this region by 3%, netachieved
margin showed ¢ 1 8% mprovement on 2008/9

In the critical arena of international sales we have battled
throughout the year to sustan the momentum of growing
profitability against abackground of softer market conditions
and reduced despatch »olumes Although we believe we
have maintained or grown our brand share in most key
markets the overall despatch total fell by 11 9% to 6 1m
parrs, a statistic exacerbated by some phasing factors which
resulted in 0 2m pairs being advanced into the previous
year Despite the lower volume base average prices grew
by 155% an the strength of a favourable Eure exchange
translabon rate and enhanced product rmix, enablng net
turnover to exceed last year by 0 4% and contiollabie profits
to advance by 7 6% This s a creditable result in such a
difficult economic chmate and reflects the improvement in
resihience ansing from our wider geographical spread and
more balanced distnbution model

Sales performance vaned by region but showed some
relative decline in sl cases Mardest hit were our distnbutor
matkets in the Middle Last and South Ameiica, where our
key partners were faced with weak demand, higher than
ideal stock levels and lack of credit In Eurcpe we saw robist
trading 1n the more mature markets such as Benclux and
Germany, but Spain proved more vulnerable to the wider
economic malaise and mn the Central and Castern Curope
region our arder pesition was severely disiupted by financial
instabitity In the China regron our despatches in mainland
China grew encouragingly by 26% but were offset by
reduced sales in Hong Keng and Korea, whilst profits
dechined shghtly in response to the planned strenathering
of our pecple crgansation and an increased investment In
distnbution and brand marketing In Japan sales demand
remained flat but profits rose strangly with the banefit of a
tavourable exchange rate

If trading In the traditional wholesaie channel remamed
under prassure, we coritnued to make good progress with
the roll out of our internationat franchise store {IFS) format,
with 57 new stores opened during the year bringing the
total open 10 196 With more than 1 3m pairs per year now
traded through the IFS channel accounting for around one

third of international profits, IFS growth has become one of
the most important determinants of ow success in
iternational markets The IFS treding bese has certainly
helped to protect us In the crrent year from the full impact
of the downturm In wholesale To maintain cur sggressive
programme of new store openings over the next few years
and at the same time maximise the operating performance
of the existing franchise estate, we recogmise that 1s vital o
invest In strengthening the support infrastructure both at
the centre and in local markets These investments In
people, ptocesses and systems are ongoing and will
naturally draw on the extensve rotalling expertise we have
butlt up over many vears in our UK home market




We have continued to investin our Supply Chain Integration
{SCIP) pregramme Vanous improvemonts to the intomial
processes governing preduct development and range
bulding have been implemented during the year,
addition to ntatives amed at IMproving customer senvice
lerols across our international markets The programme
team has also made good progiess with develooing a new
technology based solution to our demand and supply
planming and morchandise assortiment planming needs
We will need to maintain our focus on these chalienging
areas 1o ensure that we inaximise the value of our existing
substantial Investments ir SAP supply chain technalogy

In Inchia, we continue to make satisfactory piogress with the
preparations for our market ertry We are in the process of
establishing a Jomt Venwre (JV) company with a large
successful Indian retall orgamsation, the Future Group, who
Fam cure will proy e to be a highly valuable partnern 1o cur
business in future years The Joint Venture will be called
Clarks Future Footwear Limited andwill be based at Gurgaon
near New Dell: We have also appomnted a Chief Executive
1o heed the JV business We have begun o build up cur
spurcing capabilitios in the country 1n ordsr w0 suppert both
our cofe inteinatienal product 1ange and cur local
regquirements We currently anticipate that our new trading
entity wilf be fully open for business in the Spring of 2011 1
am excited by the leng-term potantial of India as & markat
for the Clarks brand bur recognise of course that st will take
sorre years tar this particular investment to transform iself
nte a materal profit contrnibutor te the Group

North America .

Whilst the fist half of the vea saw a continuation of the
turbulent econormic conditions which first emerged st the
onset of the worlchude finanaial crnisis in September 2008,
the sacond haelf of the current year has been charactensed
by a progressive improvement The recovery effect 15 sull
modest relative to the pre-recession experience, as the
roturn Lo greater stability in the wider economy has not
precluded high unemployment or lower levels of consumer
spending What s particularly pleasing 1s how our own
husiness performance has bounced back strongly as the US
economy has bogun 1o improve Following a disappointing
SpringsSummer season which culminated in & 61% fall in
first half profits, Clarks Compames North Amenca has
enjoyed one of s most successiul ever Autumn seasans
and ended the vear on a high note Turnover for the fult year
was 72 3% helow 2008/9 at $617 Om whilst divisional profits
recovered to $46 6m, 8 9% ahead of last yea

Wholesale despatches for the year fell 6 8% on 2008/9,
with net sales 5 4% lower at $351 bm The rebound in
wholesale demand in the Autumn season included a 30%
improvement on ast year’s full pniced ot once orders and
a $12m increase In overall sales value In addition lower
rarkdown costs and a reduced mix of closecuts in the
second half supported stronger margins, whilst selling
expenses were also tightly controlled This contributed to
an apprecrbla jump in full yvear wholesale trading profits,
which rose by 26 3% t0 339 2m The recovery in demand
was diven by the dommant Clarks segment in both men’s
and women's, with solid improvement in key account
business as the year progressed leavina an overasll 5%
shortfall confined to the Spring season The continuad
success of the Unstructured comfort casual group was
instrumental in delwvening growth Withan tho sales
organisaticn our Canadian division was the star parformer,
secunng an § 2% hft i sales and 37 8% nse in trading
profits, much of 1t coming from an increased presence in
department stores and "big box” discounter distnbution

The performeance of de retad dnision hes dosely minrored
the pattern m vholesale dernand, a laltening Spring season
gming way to a healthy rebound in the later months After
suftering a first half comparative siore sales dechne of 7 B%
the trend began to impiove in September as sales went up
against the start of the US economic downturn, whilsi a
particularly strong final quarter left comparatives only Just in
negatve terrttory ot 05% for the year Tnis compares
favourably with the FDRA industy sector average of -1%
Outlet stotes performed strongest m1acording a 3 3% sales
advance as consurmers remained pnee senstive and soughit
out bargains Although retail gross margins came unden
pressure as we soughl to drive transac tion volumes thmugh
increased promotional activity i a difficult first haif chmate,
branch cxpenditure was tightly managed 2t all levels
enabling the division to report an annual profe of 59 9m,
4 8% above the previous year



Chiet Executive's
Report

Continued

A key theme of the year has been contnuous reduction in
working capital Aggressive clearance of inventory in the first
half coupled with conservative purchases for the Autumn
andrecovering market demand have left year end inventories
2t therr fowest tevel for a number of years Trade debtors
averaged 14% below last year, lower than the decline in
whalesale demand, whilst collection rates and the risk of
bad debts were managed in an effective way With average
capital employed i the business down 3 4% on 2008/9, the
improved prafit performance pushed ROCE up to 20 0%,
comfortably better than the 17 7% return achieved last year
We are continuing to reviaw the tming and scope of future
capital nvestment n the systems and supply chain areas, a
number of key planning activities having already been
completed in preparation for this wark

Trading Outlook

It 15 of couise heartening that we have begun to see a
measure ot improved stabibity in the economic conditions
prevailing in our key markets, especially in North Amenca
There remains nonetheless a good deal of uncertainty
surrounding the pace and sustainabiiity of global ecanormce
recovery Various factors such as the poor state of public
finances 0 our home UK market, bigh unemployment in the
1JS and many European states and the nsks of a so-called
double dip recession as governmeants withdraw the various
fiscal support mechamsms which have so successfully
supported economic activity all give ample cause for
caution when it comes 10 assessing our prospects for the
medium term The worst of the recession may be behind us,
but we cannot rely on a strong resurgence of consumer
confidence and discretionary spending to kick-start our own
trading growth
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Despite the uncertainves suirounding the macroeccnomic
chmate | believe we are very well positioned 7o take
advantage of any improvements which do emerge and that
2010 will see a further meanmglul step forward in our
business perfermance The stronger ttends in wholesale
and retail demand feeding through in the latter months of
tast year are alleady enabling us to restore our market
position in Noith Amernica | am confident that in Clarks
Iternational the excellent groundwork carnied out over the
past wo or three years m expanding the glebal reach of the
Clarks brand and securng profitable new markets and
distribution channels will enable us to drive renevsed growth
Our international franchise store programme and mulu-
channel retailing operation should play a key role Insecuiing
this growth, although shareholders should always recogmise
that it 1s the continued healthy performance of the UK retail
business which forms the bedrock on which our future
expansion plans are buslt

The now fmancial vear has begun relatvely well Retail
trachng conditions in the U have net been easy, with fragile
consumer conhidence still to the fore, combsining with wintry
weather condiions across most of Eurcpe to produce lower
footfalithan ayear ago 1n North Americawe have continued
to enjoy sohd comparative sales growth n owned steres in
the first few weeks, the mood of optimism engendered by
the past few months looking setlo Lontinue into the Spring
We have been encourayed by a moderate stengthening
trend n our wholesale forward arder pasition for the Spring/
Summer season, both in North Amernca and internatianally
Together with & partial recovery of in-season 1eplerishment
demand in companson with the depressed aciwvity levels
seen In the early months of 2009, this suggests further
evidence that retallers are more confident in making
inventory commitmeants even ifunderlying creditrestrictions
have barely cased We anbiupate that trading conditions in
the wholesale channel wili continue to improve and have
factered 1n some maderate further growth in transaction
levels in the second half of 2010




What 15 abundantly ¢lear fiom the mixed economic news is
that we must continue to execute consistently and strongly
the key elements of our strategy Finding new innovative
product categaries, developing exciting new market
opportunities in emearging econamies such as China and
Indra, and dehlvening the Clarks brand proposition
corvincingly across all our distribution channels worldwide
are in the end the challenges which will define our success
over the coming years The onset of global recession has
impeded our progress 1o an extent but has not changed
this strategic intent i any fundamental aspect Indeed as
our business model has matured and our delivery capability
has grown stronger, our commercial fortunes may perhaps
become less directly dependent on the external economic
chmate, although we can never be completely insulated
from wider trends occurring in the outside world On the
whole therefore, | feel reasonably confident about our
growth prospects for the coming year and would anticipate
that shareholders will see a further solid advance in Group
salas and profits

Since this 1s my last report as Chief Executive, | would hike to
take the opportunity to place on record my sincere thanks
to all employees across the Company who have contributed
so rnuch ta making the past few years a highly successhul
penod in the long history of Clarks Foi me this has been an
enjoyable and challenging sixteen years | have seen many
changes in the focus and direction of the business in that
time, with the cosure of domastic manufsctuning, the
repuvenation of out UK retailing operations, our dramatic
agrowth in North America and, most recently, the mtegranion
of our UK and nternational businesses into a coherent
expression of the Clarks brand globally This has all been
achieved with the suppo.t of an extremely dedicated and
talented management team to whom agamn | offer my
speaial thanks

1 am pleased and proud to leave behind a Company which
15 10 robust financial health, with strong recuraing cash flows
and an exceilent balance sheet | belheve shareholders can
laok forward ta many mare years of strong finanual
performance and sustained returns which stand cormparison
with the best in the global footwear industry | am very
confident that Melissa will take the business forwards to a
ne v level of achievernemt | wish her and the Board and the
enbre managernent leam avery success for the fuue

Peter Bolliger
Chuef Executive

24th March 2010




Financial
Review

Results for the year
Group tumover increased to £1,173 5Sm trom £1,122 Om, an

inciease of 4 6%

Gioup profit before inteiest rose by 5 4% to £98 9m and
profit before interest and exceptional tems rase by 4 4% to
£97 4m Profit befoie tax fell by 2 0% to £85 1m due to
mcreased pensicn financing costs of £11 8m compared to
£4 5m in the prior year Profit after tax of £60 8m s 1 9%
below last year's comparative of £62 Om Post exceptional
garnings per share declined te 101 6 pence per share from
102 6 pence last year

Adetaledteview of trading performance foreach business

division 1s provided in the Chief Executive's report on
pages 101615
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Accounting Policies

In my report last year | stated that having evaluated the
benefits of adopting International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) compared to the cosis involved in
transitioning 1o the new standards, the Board decided that
it would not be in the best interests of the Shareholdears to
adopt IFRS last year | also explained that the decision would
be reviewed on an ongomg basts | can confirm that the
Board's view remains unchanged, that L would not be in the
best interests of the Shareholders to adopt IFRS in the
coming year The decision will continue 1o be reviewed at
least annually

Presentation of Results

in hne with pravious years, we have adopted a columnar
format far the Group profit and loss account in order to
distinguish as dearly as possible between the performance
of the core lootwear aperetions and the impact of
exceptional expenditure and Income

We have again chosen to report on the face of the Group
profit and loss account the costs of prowviding long-term
incentive schemes to Executive Duectlors and senior
management as a separate item charged in arrving at
operating profit In the current year the profit and loss
charge has increased to £12 1m (2008709 £3 6m) 1n
consequence of the increasing profiabilny of the Group
and the fact that we are recognising costs in respect of three
concurrent performance cycles for the first e Please
refer to 'Long-term Incentive Plan” on page 32 for a full
description

Exceptional items

In order to secure long term growth and drive the business
forwards we have this year made some changes to the
business An exceptional charge of £3 3m (2008/09 f1ul) has
been recognised as part of cperating profits and relates to
the costs of off2nng a volumary severance programme 1o
amployees in North Amenca

This excoptional charge 1s offset by profits on disposal of
fixed assets of £0 9m (2008/09 £0 5m) representing a small
number of low value property disposals and by a profit of
£3 9m on the disposal of a second tranche of fand on the
Houndwood site in Street for residential developrnent
These disposal prohits are shown below operating profits in
accordance with FRS 3 {Reporting Financial Performance)
Paragraph 20

An exceptions! gain before taxaton of £1 5m 1s reported
(2008/09 a gain of £0 5m)

e



Financing Costs

Financing costs of {13 8m (2008/09 — {7 Orm) compnise bank
interest charges of £2 Om (2008/0% — £2 5m) which 1eflect
the impact of fower interest rates and reduced external
borrowings, and net penston financing costs of £11 8m
{2008/09 - £4 5m) Pension financing 1s an smputed charge
calculated in accordance with FRS 17, and represents the
difference between the mterest charge on the Group's
pension labihities and the expected return on the pension
assets, the former based on a discount rate denved from
hugh quality corporate bonds

Taxation

The effective rate of tax on earnings before exceptional
iterns 1s 29 7% (2008/09 28 7%) The tax charge on current
year profits, excluding prior year adjustments, 1s 28 9%
{2008/09 30 3%) Around 1% of this 1 4% reduction s due to
a lower tax charge on North Amencan earmungs, with a
greater proportion of these earnings arising in Canada
where the tax rate 1s lower The balance of the reduction s
due to the full year effect of the reduction in UK corporate
tax rate to 28%

The proportion of Group profits taxed in North America
remained relatively low, as 0 the prior penod As the US
business 1ecovers fiom the economic downturn the group
tax rate 1s expected to increase, to araund 309%, ¢s US and
Canadian earnings are taxed at around 40% and 33%
respectively The ligher North Amencan tax rates and the
fact UK tax relief i1s not obtained for commercial building
depreciation and some lease exit costs are the main
factors causing the Group tax rate to excecd the slandard
28% UK tax rate

Ihe additional © 7% of prior year tax charge 1s mainly due to
ncreased Amencan state taxes in prior peneds However, a
number of US states have announced reductions in state
taxrates and consequently this cost s expocted to decrease
in future pernods The current year post exceplional tax rate
of 28 6% 15 1 1% less than the pre-exceptional rate due o
part of the profil on the disposal cf the old Houndwood
warehouse site being avallable for relief against othas
property expendrture

Balance Sheet

Capital employed has decreased by £90 4m or 20 4% to
£353 1m a1 3% January 2010 Our working caprtal levels in
Clarks International are £37 Om fewer than last year with
reduced nventory levels of £134 Om (£154 3m 2008/0%)
baing the main dnver Inthe US our year end working capital
levels are in line with last year

Our fixed asset base has recdvced by 7 4% 1o f 189 9m as a
1esult of lower capital Invastment levels compared with
the prior year However we have continued 1o invest in
retall stores both in the UK and the US and have continued
to rofl out our internationat franchise store programme
Group capital expendiure of £19 Om {£32 7m 2008/09)
felt below the level of depreciation charged of £27 5m
(£28 3m 2008/09)

We have relocated and opened 6 naw ovmed stores in the
UK at a cost of £1 7m (previous year being 21 stoles at a
cost of £5 $m} We have also refitted a further 30 stores at a
cost of £2 9m {previous year being 40 stores at a cost of
£50m) in addition we have invested during the year in 57
international franchise stores at 2 cost of £1 5m {previcus
year being 65 stores at a cost of £1 &m)

We have relocated and opened 11 new stores inthe US at 2
cost of $4 Om (previcus year 19 stores at a cost of $6 5m)
We have also refitted a further 2 stores at a cost of $0 5m
{previous vear 3 stores at a cost of 30 ém)

Frovisicns of £21 8m have mereased by £12 8m on last year
as we are holding higher prowisions for long-tenn incentives
for Executives and sentor managers

Due to the increased profits, significant reductions 1n
working capital and fowar levels of capitel mvestrment we
are reporting a net cash pos:tion of £77 4m, £106 9m better
than last years net borrowing position of £29 5m Cash flow
generated from operating actvittes of £171 2m was £101 7m
higher than last years £69 5m drniven predominantly by the
reduced working capital levels, nereased provisions and
higher levels of profits before mterest, whilst cash outflows
rom nvesting activities of £19 &m were lower than the prior
year's comparative of £33 Tm Tax paid of £20 4m was £5 9m
lower than 2008/09s level due to sume changes in the
phasing of payments in North Arnerica

Shareholders’ funds stand at £322 $m, £34 Om higher than
last year's comparative Neat assets of £422 7m were
£20 Om tugher than last year and the reduction of £14 Om
in the pension deficit as outined inmy following paragraph
has further contnbuted to the improved balance sheet
posttion
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Financial
Review

Continued

Pensions

The deficit in the Company's defined benefit penston
scheme contimues to have a significant impact on the
Group's trading results and balance sheet The deficit has
decreased to £100 2m from £114 2m at 31st January 2009

The cost of all Group pension schemes 1s shown in Note 22
to the iinancial statements

Actuarial gains and kosses are shown in the Statement of
Total Recogmsed Gains and Losses on page 49 These
financial statements recognise a modest tmprovement in
the lovel of pension deficit in both the UK and North
Ameirican schemes The positive impact of 1ecovery in
equity markets was largely offset by lower corporate bond
rates which increased our net liabiliies

During the financial year cash contributions into the main UK
fund by way of defiat funding amounted to £16 5m (£5 0min
2008/09) and $6 Om (3nit (n 2008/0%) into the main LS fund
As highiighted 10 last year’s Financial Review the new
programme of debant funding agreed in November 2008
mcluded a commitment to contnbute annually a minimum
of £17 0m with effect from the year ended 31st January 2010
The Group made accelerated payments of £5 Om in the year
ended 31st January 2009 which did not fall due until the
year ended 31st lanuary 2010
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Treasury Operations

The Group's funding, hquidity, currency and interest rate nsks
are managed by a Treasury Committee working within a
frarmework of policies suthorsed by the Board The polteies
are reviewes] and updated annually where necessary

Funding and Liquidity

The Group's borrowing facilities comprise a Revolang Credit
Facility with a syndicat- of five majen banks an da tot 3l facihty
amount of £138 5m This facility s due to expire in June 2012
The Group also has UK and other overseas short-term
facihties amounting to £33 6 m (2008/09 — £49 5m)

interest Rate Risk,

The Group 15 exposad to interest rate risk prncipally in
relation to borrowings and deposits denominated in
Sterling, US Dollar and the Euio

Currency Risk

The Treasury Committee managas currency exposute
refating 1o the Group’s trading oparations by entering into
a combination of fixed forward dated and structured
nstruments, at key poirts throughout each season based
on detalled forecasts of future transaction flows The mam
currencies in order of transactional value are US Dollar,
Euro and Japanese Yen The US Dollar 1s used primanly for
sourcing footwear from outside the USA, examples being
Brazil and the Far East Contracts are placed competitively
with relationship hanks Incorme and expenditure flows in
the same currency are offset as far as possible through
natural hedaing and as a result sales and puichasing actimty
within the Furo zone 1s consolidated

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s estinated
currency exposure for the Auturnn/Winter 2010 season
was covered in iine with policy and lor earbier seasons
100% covered The total value of fixed dated sale and
purchase currency contracts at 31st January 2010 was
{455 7m (2008/09 - £476 4m)




Share Market
In accordance with the Articles, share valuations are

piepared twice a year by an independent firm of chartered
accountants

In May 2009, 733,018 Ordinary Shares were offered for sale
at {6 50 and 103,455 shares wete purchased at that price

In July 2009 the Company bought back 601,974 shares at
£6 50 {1% of the total shares 1 gireulation) from a total of
947,858 shares offered for sale to the Company

In October 2009, 254 380 Crdinary Shares were offered for
sale at £6 50 which were all purchased at that price

On 30th June 2009 87,730 shares were appropnated for

participants in the C&J Clark Limited All Employee Shaie
Incentive Plan

Robin Beacham
Finance Director

24th March 2010
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Corporate
Policies

'Live your style'

Bold, declarative messaging from
Clarks Companies North America
for Spring/Summer 2010 hits horme
with consumers Building on the
seasonal campaign, warm and
spontaneous images bring Clarks
footwear to hfe
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Corporate
(Governance

Introduction

The Group 15 committed to high standards of cotporate
governance The Board 1s accountable to the Company's
shareholders for good governance and this statement
describes how the Grouo supports the principles laid down
in the revised Combined Code on Corporste Governance
{'the Code’) as 1ssuad by the Financial Reporting Counail in
June 2006 As a private himiled company the Group 1s not
recuuired to adhere to the Comb.ned Code but does so on
a voluntary basis This statement descnibes how the
principles of the Code are appled and reports on tha
Group's comphance with the Code’s provisions throughout
the yoar ended 31st January 2010 Where the Group has nat
comphed with the provisions the Directors have disclosed
the fact and thow reasons for believing that these omissions
do not compromise the high standards of corporate
covernance In fartherance of the prinaples ot goed
corporate governance, the Board and Board Committess
cperate in the following ways

Board of Directors

The Board currentiy consists of the Non-Fxecutive Chairman
five other Non-ExecLtive Directors and four Cxecutive
Directors The tographical details of the Board members
are set out on pages 38 ard 39 The Directors bring strong
independert judgement and considerable knowledge and
axpenence tothe Board's delibeiations The Code stipulates
that at least half of the Board, excluding the Chairman,
should comprise independent Non-Executive Direciors
The Code defines independent Non-Executne Directors a3
those who do not ropresent a significant sharcholding or
have material busingss with the Company Three Non-
Executive Directors are independent within this definion
The Board also feels that 1t 15 in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole that there are two representatives
of the Family Shareholder Counal on the Board

The Boa-d meets regularly throughout the year and on
addmonal occasions as required The Company Secretary
rmaintains ¢ recerd of attendance gt Board meetings and
Committee meetings, further details of which are disclosed
in the table opposie The Boerd has @ schedule of matters
specifically reserved to iself for decision, such as the
approval of annual and interim report and accounts and
annual budgets and the decdlaration of dvidends The Board
15 commutted te ensurng that proper standards of corporate
goverrance are maintained theoughout the Group
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The Code advocates the appointment of a separate
Nominations Comrmiltee comprising a majonty of
independant Non-Lxecutne Directors Currently the Board
assembles Nommation Committens to deal with speafic
nominations as necessary Members of the Board and
recruitment consultants who are also used to assist tho
process, suggesi possible new Lxecutive and Non-Lxecutive
Directors Candidates are considerad by all Duactors and
the Company Secretory Whonever 1 new Dractor o
appointad to the Board, he or she 1s provided with access
to aporopriate traning If necessary Dunng the yoar the
Chairman formed a Nomnation Committee comprising
himself, Nige | Hall, Torn O'Nedl and Hugh Clark to carry out
a process to appoint the new Chief Executive lhe
Committee carmed out & camprehensine scarch using
recruitment consultents and considered both external and
internal canchdates for the role

The Code recommends that Non-Executive Directors
should serve two three-year terms However, in accordance
with the Articles of Assaniation, Non-Executive Directors
fexcluding the Non-Executive Chairman) can serve untid the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeang aftor thoy
have completed mne vears of service or such other period
as the Company agrees by special resolution AL the firet
Annual General Meeung foliowing then appointment,
Diractors must retire ard sock re clection In sddition,
Directors retire by rotation, and are eligible for re-election,
at least every three years

There is an agreed procedure for Directors to take
mdependent prolossional advice, dnecessary, at the Gro ph
expense This 1s 1n addition to the access which every
Director has 1o the Company Secratary The Company
Secretary 15 charged by the Board with ensuting that Bnard
procedures are followed Any concerns relatmg to the
gxecutive management of the Group o1 the perfarmance
of the other Non Fxecutive Directors can be raised with the
Deputy Charrman, Harnet tall of for any reason its
inappicprate to rase them with the Chairman

To anable the Board to function effectively and allow
Directors to cischarge thar responsdoitics fult and timely
access 15 given to all relevant information in the case of
Board meetings, this consists of a comprehensive set of
papers, including regular business pragress reports and
discussion documents regarding speacific matters
The performance 15 continually momtored by the Chairman
Full details of Directors’ emoluments and a statement of the
Group's rernuneraton pobcy 1s set out i the Remuneration
Report on pages 30 to 35 The Non-Executive Directors
receve afee, but do not participate in any bonus or incentive
schemes or quatfy for pansion benefits




Membership of Board and sub commuittees

Sharg Euard

A1t RLamurention Vol ator Percor »
Fan Be ard Connie oy 7rnntTe e Cortiillen Cnnaree
Mer he Atarddan ¢ Merhar Atdina e F b At ant g e e Aunghan Mobor Ater e
Number of meetings 6 3 4 2 2
Executive Directors
Peter Bolliger yes 6 no ¥ no - ves 2 yes 2
Robin Beacham yes 6 no 3 no - yes 2 yes 2
Bab Infanting yos b no Z no - yes 2 ne
Melissa Potter yes 6 no 2 no - yes 2 no -
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Davies Char 6 yes 3 yes 4 yoes 2 Char ?
Harret Hall! yes 4 yes 3 yes 4 yes 2 no -
Hugh Clark! yes & yes 3 Char 4 yas 2 no -
Thomas J O'Neill yes 6 yes 3 yes 4 ¥es 2 no -
Nigel Hall yes 6 Charw 3 yoy 4 Char 2 no
Stanley Kravetz yes & yes 3 yes 4 yes 2 no

! Reprasentivis o tne Family Shareholder Counail

? Arterded Lhe maa ing 3 the mvration ¢ e Commutee

Board Committees

The Board has appointed the following Committees to deal
with spectiic aspects of the Group’s affairs The Comnttees
althave formal Terms of Reference that have beer approved
by the Board and are held at the registered office however
these Tenms of Reference are not available on the Group's
website and i this respect, the Group 1s not in compltance
with the Code The Group feels that makina Committee
Terms of Refeience avalable at its iegistered office 15
suffictent for those shareholders that require to see the
Terms of Reference A table showing attendees and chairs
of each Committee 1s shown above The Code advises that
no single Non-Executive Director should sit concurrently on
ali three of the principel Board Committees Audit, Share
Valuation and Remuneration Due to the size of the Board,
the Beard does not beheve that this would be feasible or
beneficial to the Group

Audit Committee

The Cornmitiee has formal Terms of Reference covering all
the points recommended by the Code It meets at least
three times a year and its duties Include the review of
internal controls and nisks throughout the Group, approving
the Group’s accounting policies and reviewing the annual
and intenm report and accounts before subrmission to the
Board The independence and objectivity of the external
audhtors and the effectneness of the external audit process
are also consicdlerad 1t 1s a specific responsibility of the Audnt
Committee to ensure that an appropriate relationship 1s
maintained between the Group and its externat auditors

The Group contrals the provision of non-audi services to
safeguard the external auditor’'s objectivity and
independence The split between audit and non-audrt fees
for the year under review appears on page 54 The Finance

Director, other Executive Directors, external auditors and
company managers are nvited to attend the meetings of
the Commuttee as appioprate

Remuneration Commrttee

The Commitiee meets at least twice a year and its
responsibilities are 1o approve the remuneration and other
benefits of the Fxecutive Diractors The Committee also
receves reports on the terms and conditions ot other senior
executives The Group Chairman sits on, but does not char,
this Committee asthe Groupconsidersthat, onappomntment,
the Chatrman was independent Thus 15 in accordance with
the provisions of the Code

Share Valuation Committee

The Committee meets twice a year with representatives of
the valuers of the Company's shares, tagether with other
advisers, to review the genaral trading background and
other approprate iInformation 1o assist In vaiuing the shares

Board Pensions Committee

The Comimittee reviews and agrees any propasal for
changes to pension schemes for employees All significant
changes are recormmended to the Board for approval

Famsly Shareholders’ Counail

Famly shareholdars holding some 80 3% of the ardinary
shares of the Company have formed a Council to aid
communication between shareholders and the Board The
Counal assists in the implementation of corporate
governance policies and works with the Beard in matters
affecung the marketability of shares The Council may
nominate two persons for appointment as Non-Executive
Directors of the Group
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Corporate
(Governance

Continued

Shareholder Relations

The Group places a great deal of importance on
communicetion with its shareholders and employees The
full annual and intetim report and accounts are avaitahle to
all shareholders Al sharcholders have the oppoertunity to
ask questions at the Company’s Annual General Mecting
which all Dirtectors attend At the meetingthe Chuef Executive
will gives & statement on the Group's pertormanco during the
financial year Both the Chair of the Audit Commuttee and
the Chair of the Remuneration Committee are available for
questions at the Annual General Meeting The Chairman will
sdvise shareheldars on proxy voting levels

Audit and Internal Control

The Board through the Audit Committee, 1sresponsible for
the system of internal controls maintained by the Group It
alsa has responsibility for carrying out a review of the status
of those intereal controls on an annual basis and reporing
that 1t has done so This system provides reasonahle, but
not absolute, assurance against matenal loss and includes
the safeguarding of assets, the mamtenance of proper
accounting records, the reliabibity of fimanaal mformation
compliance with appropriate legisiation and mitigetion of
busnass nisks [rheare 15 an orgomng process for dentdying,
evaluating and managing the ssigrficant nsks faced by the
Group Key olements of the Group's system of internal
control are as follows

- The Direr tars bave put i place an organisation structure
with clearly definadines of responsiiity and delegation
of authorny

- The Group hdas 2 comprehensive systemn of fimanaal
reporting

- The annual budget of oach operating unit 1s approved
bv the Executive Directors and the Board approves the
overall Group budget

- Performance aganst budget 15 reviewed by the Board
each month and any significant variances are examined
Detatled perfarmance reviews are carried out by
management

—  There are clearly Jefined policies for capiial expendrtare
approval including appropriate authonsstion levels
L.arge capital projocts and company acquisitions reguire
Board approval
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- A number of functions, which operate within policies
and delegated authonty hmits established by the
Board, report to the Board penodically These include
freasUry operabions, comporate taxotion, pension fund
anct 11sk management

- (Group and cperational management are responsible
for the 1dentfication, svaluation and management of
kay 11sks applicable to thar areas of the business In the
UK this s supported by the role of Risk Manager

Thesa risks may be associated with a vanety of internal or
external events including control broakdowns, regulatary
requirernents and natural catastrophe Lach cperating unit
i responsible for establishing and operating the required
detaled control procudures o manage these risks

The systems detalded above have beer in place for the year
under review and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements They are regularly roviewed by tha Directors
and accord with the Turnbull guadance on ntamal control
There are two Internal Control Conmmittees, one in the UK
and one mthe US, which are responsible wor monnonneg and
reviewing the mtemal control environment within the Group
on behalf of the Audit Commitice A business wide review
of internal controls and nisk management systerrs 15 carned
out every year and reviewed by the Audit Committee on
behalf of the Board The review inchicates areas i vhich the
systom of intermnist contral could be furtrer improvaoa
Detaled reviews of the most signdicant of these araas are
conducted duning the following year and the rosults
reported 1o the Audit Committee The Audit Commitiee
have reviewed the riaeed for an internal audit furction and
consider that the current systems provide adequate
assurance at this time  This decision will continue o be
regularly reviewed




Health & Satety

Summary

2009 was an encouraging year and the groundwork was {aid
for further improvements in the future

Traming was a key theme of the year and senior managers in
Head Office, Retarl and Logstics attended coursas focussing
on actc untabihty Line managers in Logistics at both
Wastway andt Watercrook have received additional traiming
onsubjects relovant to thea patticuler roles Each sales arca
in Retail nov has a competent Alea Health & Safety Specizhst
to induct new Store Managers and work alongside the Area
Sales Managers to achieve our abjectives

Across the UK and Republic of lreland retar business there
was a total of 889 acaidents, on a parwith last yea Howevar,
the more seriaus reportable acaidents showed a 27%
reduction fiom 37 1n 2008 to 27 1in 2009 There were 36 wisits
1o our retail pramises by the enforcement agenaies and in 8
ot these no action at all was required There was no
enforcement action taken against the Company

Supply Chain aiso made good progress and reduced
the total number of acodents at the two Logisucs sites by

30% o 46

Accidents in total across the UK and Republic of ireland
businces reduced by 8 8% ot reportable incidants were
down by 23% However, reported cases of violence ot verbal
abuse to our retall staff increased by 310 21

The insurance claims lustory has shown a steady and significant
improvement over the last five years, perhaps the best
ndicazol of the health and safety cultire of the business

he Healthand Safety Steenng Grotp, chared by the Finance
Director again met twice during the year to review prograss,
agree areas regquinng actien and set dvisional objectives

in Clarks Companies North America, reportable acadents
reduced by 9% to 77 Training has alse featured in the efforts
of the US business dunng the year togethar with a numbser
ot ivitiatives focussing on improving comphance and
reducing insurance claims
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Corporate Social
Responsibility
SUmMmaAary

Ctarks Social Responsibility (CSR) Strategy
Clarkstakesresponsibility for the way inwhich ouroperations
affect people end the planet we inhabit Qur strategy 1s to
measul & aspects of the busingss that reflect our impactand,
vihere beneficial, direct the busmness to improve We also
address nsk where it s found to be significant

Qur mtegrated approach to CSR anns o provide global
consistency and to ensure CSR 15 taken into account as part
of our normal busness practices In the three years since we
launched, the key governance elements have been delivered
and constitute the bedrock upen which we can huld

Times change and inevitably our strategy changes with
thermn New goals present themselves and need tobe metin
orcder to maintam progress 5o, in addimen to establishing
nternal governance, Clarks is addressing the growing
concerns of customers, employess and shaieholders We
also henchmark our approach against external critena,
continually reviewing 1t in direct compatison to the
performance of our competitors and peers

To reflect this shift in emphasis, our 2010 CSR summary
ineludes our longer-term ambrtions, detals of significant
risks and actity against each area of Social Responsibility

Environment
Clarks strive to minimise the adverse environmental impact

of our business activities, to comply with all relevant
anvironmental legislation and to promote a canng attitude
to the environment armongst our ermployees

Matenals

The leather tanning process 15 the significant social
rosponsibility nisk mthis area This, after all, uses a by-product
of slaughterhouses and tanning requires use of hazardous
matenals to treat, dye and finish the leather If appropriate
controls, protection and waste treatment are not in place,
these compounds can cause immediate and long-term
health ccmplaints

To counter this risk, our Leather Buying team have
established Clarks as a leader in the selection of tannenes
It 13 o posiion that serves us well For example, our
membership of the Leather Working Group, a global
organisation which has established new standards for
tannery performance, gave us the opporturity to sit down
with Greenpeace and discuss therr concerns over the
de-forestauon of the Amazon
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As a result of those discussions, and in conjunction with
partners including Nike, Timbertand and New Balance, we
have set up the Hides Working Group This applies the
successful Leather Working Group formula to the challenge
of hide traceability and s wotking to ensure hides for
Clarks’ leather ss from farms that support efforts to preserve
the Amazon

Beyond raw matenals, the key challenge s to reduce the
negatve mpact of the goods we design and to maxirmise
the opportunity for end-of-fe recycling and re-use

Addressing this challenge reguires integration with our
design and development process and an understanding ot
the opportunities for reuse when our products reach the
end of ther lde

Our Product teams are currently making changes i design
processes to reflect the increasing global nature of our
business Remaining true to our principles of integration,
these changes will ncorporate a revised approach to CSR

Energy, Waste & Recycling

in terms of end-of-life spportumties, we continue 10 work
wath other footwear and recyching partners to support the
SMART Centre at Loughbaorough University This work s
into its second year and, having identified wiable markets
for end-of-life products, s now fecussing on developing
technolegy and machinery to break toctwear down into
component materials

Elsewhere in the business we underline our commitment by
building CSR into decision-making processes In 2009 two
working groups were established These are charged with
improving performance and setting standards - one covering
recycling and waste reduction, the other energy efficiency

The impact of the Waste and Recyching group s gradual
and imprevements will be long-term We are shanng the
lessans from our Westway distribution centre whuch
recycled 99 3% of 1ts total of 2,892 Tonnes of wasie, a
stunning result Our Head Office and Retaill Operations
present thar own challenges, currently managing to recycle
arcund 70% and 30% of waste respectively n the coming
year we will imcorporate additional waste reporting for
Clarks North Amenca

The Enetgy Efficiency group has already had an impact
through briefing a new opeating policy 1o our UK shops
and Head Office, and specifysng mimimum standards for our
new shop design

As with the waste group, progress will be gradual Initial
benefits of the group are seen in ou readiness for the UK
Gavernment's Carbon Reduction scheme in 2011 and
progress vath our CO, model This model now tracks
approximately 19,000 Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide that
result from Clarks’ direct use of fuel, ar travel and gnd
energy in the UK This represents an estimated 90% of
Clarks' direct UK emissions In 2010 we wall incorparate US
data into our model




Employment and Working Conditions

Clarks attach real importance to the welfare of our
employees, those employed by our suppliers, and to the
wider cornmunities i which we operate We have minimum
standards for the treatment of our people wherever we
aperate around the world and, where products are
manufactured by Clarks’ business pantners, we sperate a
well-established comprehensive audit programme

Third-party Welfare

Factory audils are the lachpin around which we tnanage
our significant CSR nsks in this area Coverning factories that
make our footwear in high-risk areas, we have written results
and personal observations from our audit team regarding
the effectiveness of the current process

As avidence of our commitment to our audit programme, In
2009 the Social Responsibility Steenng Group approved a
new formal process to escalate 1ssues should a factory not
address urgent audit concerns

This year we also tested revised audit reporting to reflect
the importance of a factory 1n terms of production volume
This successfully idenitified aeas of improvement, however
the complexity of cross-referencing suppher details from
our Clatks International Clarks North America, and Factory
Shopping operations aganst audit results requires more
work over the coming year to allow this to be adepted in
the leng term

We currently audit approximately 80% of our warldwide
footwear production Afurther 15% m consdeed to be
fromiow risk countries so 1s not audited, whilst the remainder,
for Factory Shopping and from Agents, 1s not curiently
audited, but will be reviewed

The audit function s effective and remams best placed in
the countries in which we source products Nonetheless, we
recogrise the hmitations of audits, particularly where
supphers doe notshare our values, where we are a lone voice,
or where aur custom is a relatively small part of the supplier’s
overall businass

To this end, we are undertaking a full strategic review of the
role of the audit team, therr operation, and ther long-term
objectives widun our overall CSR piogramme

This review will be completed early in 2010 and
recommendations implemented during the year

This yeat we again contiibuted to the ‘Let's Clean up
Fashion’ survey This 1s run by the ‘Labour behind the Label’
campalgning group and attempts to grade UK High Street
retallers’ efforts on living wages oversess

The findings of this survey internal benchmarking and
our new membership of 'Business for Social Responsiblity’
will inform our strategic review to dirive improved
factory standards

Empioyee Welfare & Development

Inside our business, Human Resources have mtroduced and
rolled-out a new competency and personal development
process for Clarks International This 1s a major step towards
ocur ambitien of developing a culture of personal
development for 2!l employees

We maintain our ambition 10 develop internal measures of
our success in treating our own employees fanly around the
world Given that this area 15 lower nsk than third-party
factonies, availability of resources to create such reports will
be reviewed in coming years

Consurmer Respansibility and Ethics

We are inspired by selling quality, stybsh and comfortatle
shoes that people love We also strive to maintain
consumers’ trust by constantly evolving and moving forwaid
to uphold our values of foothealth and siraightforwsrd
business dealing

Employee Guwdance & Compliance

As mentionec in the Strategy mtroduction, the coming year
will see a shiit in emphasis in this area this shift mandests
itself as & new ambition to create a code of conduct This
code will reference relevant policies and communicate
them, creating a document that 1s both a guide and a source
of information and instrucuon relevent to all employees

The scope of this code of conduct 15 broad, so work in 2010
will focus on defining global governance and how we wish
to support employees ta do the nght thing The code wiil
aviarlock wath plang to promote the core values of Clarks
and 15 expected to be rolled out from 2011

Product Quality & Conformance

Maintaining the guality of  and qualittes mheront w1 - cur
products temains paramourit Any iessening of control i
this area presents significant risk

We maintain our excellenmt record 1n providing safe
products for our customers and have a wide ranging
piegramme underway to Increase our controls over design
and development

In 2009 we made two highly precautonary recall. on our
children’s product These were in response 1o concerns
raised by customers and nvolved the possibility of smail
parts becoming detached from shoes and becoming a
cheking hazard Although the causes of the two recalls were
not refatad, and chancas of failure are very low, we have
revised advice to designers to ensure the nsk of repetition
15 redfuced

The ever-changing and diffeient preduct standards of
global markets, and the testing procedures used to enforce
these, continues 1o be a concern Qur Restricted and
Banned Substances Policy was reviewed two years ago

However, such is the pace of change in this area that cur
Scurcing Tearn will be looking again at the current approach
to confirm its fithess for purpose and te recommend any
required changes
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Corporate Social
Responsibility
SUMIMOAry

Continued

Away from product, all suppliers of Non-Resale goods and
services for our Clarks International business are asked to
sigh up to our “Sourcing Principles’ before starung work for
Clarks In shops bearing the Clarks name, International
Franchise Partners are to sign up to fair teatment of all
shop employees

Communication & External Projects

Work to communicate our athical position within the
business will be boosted as part of the Code of Conduct
implementation [n the meantime we continue to
develop our Soaial Responsibility intranet site to allo v
employoes 1o view imfarmation on a range of previousty
urmreported activity

Looking outside Clarks, we now have a process to ensure
ongonng review of 'Mult stakcholder Groups' - 1o 1dentify
those whose objectives and appioach 1s similar to Clarks As
o result wo are 1n conversation with several groups and are
now members of ‘Business for Social Responsibility' (BSR)
BSR has a global network of more than 250 member
comparues which develop sustainable business strategies,
see www bsr org for more information

We continue to support the "HER” women's reproductive
heaith awareness project in Vietnam, and are pleased that
this project has secured longer-term funding to allow it to
Qrow N Loming years

Charity and Community

Clarks, our employees and shareholders, have a long
heritage of chantable works in 2009 the Group made a total
of £787 108 in donations —in the form of both cash and value

of goods donated

In 2009 we completed a full review of our approach to
supporting good causes to ensure pelicy continues to fully
reflect our values

This werk validated our current two-level approach of
supporting a few key causes whose values tally with cur
own, whilst also maintaming a large number of small-
scale donations

This year we give an insight into two of the key causes we
have supported for many years 'Triangle’, a charity
supported by cur Boston operation, and "Soul of Africa’,
suppo-ted globally
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Soul of Africa, a charrty in South Aflica that trains unemployed
and unskdlledwomento handstitch shoes, received £375,000
from Claiks during the year through both the purchase of
those products and by the donation of a percentage of the
sates In our retail stores both in the UK and Amernica The
money 15 used locally in South Afnica to develop projects
that help disadvantaged children affected by AIDS

Triangle empowers people with disabiliues, helping them
to lead rich fulfilling hves

With Triangle, Clarks Compantes North Amenca plonesiad
the ‘First Step’ program which offers work internships and
valuable career training to people with disabilities Since
2004, 15 people have graduated from Fiest Step - wath 11 of
these graduates finding permanent employment

In addition 1o First Step, Clarks Companies North America
sells Triangle-made products, such as shoe care kits, through
retall stores They also receve donations from customners,
and provide direct contnbutions and support

As well as these highhights, during the course of the year
Clarks and our employees have been involvad giving time
and effort im fundraising actvities for a range of chanties
including UNICEF and Chuldren in Need

Elsewhere in the community, the first phase of the
Houndwood housing scherme in Street achieved the navonal
Building for Life gold standard award, with the highest score
achieved to date by any development in the UK Tne award
ts from the Government's advisor on architeciure, urban
design & public space, 1t 1s for well designed homes and
neighbourhoods, censultatien the environment and
commumity

Clarks’ Family Trusts

There are various Clarks’ Family Trusts which have been set
up principally for the benafit of Clarks” employees past
emplovees and their farmiligs

The Clark Foundation makes grants for the beneht of
commurnities in the areas of education, health, recreation
and community welfare Grants are mamly tor capital
projects where laige numbers of Clarks current and past
employees and thew {amilies are located, in the UK and
Worldwide Organisations such as schools, sports clubs
childrens groups, environmental projects and hospital
facilities are typical beneficianes Grants are also given for
prajects promoted by retail employees

The Clark Foundation also makes cverseas grants in
countries where substantial numbers of non-Clark
employees make our shoes Examples include schools,
bbraries and medical services




Qther Clarks Trusts make grants for employees’ further
education and [or higher education tor their farmilies Last
year support was gwven to approximately 90 students on
courses at University Grants are slso avallable in the event
of hardshup or at a nme of crisis

The total grants described above for the year to 31st Jan
201015 over £600,000

Awareness of the varous grants avallable 15 via Clarks
intranet, posters and Pension bulletins

Governance

Qur aim 1s to mamntain a Steenng Group that champions,
monitors and reports on CSR strategy and objectives, with
a langer-term ambition to aevelop a truly global influence
on Clarks’ operations — along with increased insight into the
performance of competitars and peers

Koy activity to deliver this ambition has baen the
re-instatement of our henchmarking exercise (ast carned
out in 2007) and the commitment 1o a strategic re. iew of
ouwr factory audit programme Thes review s detadod in
preceding text, and will recormend how the audit team
becomes more aligned to the CSR Steening Group This
stgrificant operational change will establish enhanced
ovarsight and imprroved governance

The banchmarking exercse of 2007 has been refreshod and
updated to become an annual reviewy, carmed out by a third-
party independent from Clarks The findings of this
benchmark review broadly support the actions outhned in
these pages

In summary, the review tound that Clarks perform better
than average amonast footwear brands/retalers, and less
well in direct comparison to other UK firms that have high
reputotions for integrity Jobn Lewis Partnership, The
Cooperalive Group, 3oots and Marks & Spencer

This benchmarkirg highlighted the following as are 1 of

particular impottance and supports our cwn internal

conclusions all of which farm the platform for continuadl

improvement and review through 2010/11
Ongoing management of CSR risk from laather tanaing,
faclory working conditions and product gevernance

~  Implementstion of systematic rmprovements to v ntten
pohuos and procedures needs to continue

—~  Current work to develop increased and more robust
lovels of reporting for key measures should also
incorporate the setting of targets for performance

- Evolve Clarks CSR ambitions and strategy of
integration, now we have established governance,
reporting and monitonng
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Remuneration
Report

Remuneration Committee (the Committee)

The Committee compnises ali of the Non-Executive
Directors and s charred by Hugh Clark The Committee 1s
responsible for approving an approptiate level of
remuneration for the Executive Directors within the
principles the Committee has determined The Committee
keeps itself fully informed of all relevant developments and
beot praciice inthe held of remuneration and seeks advice
where appropriate from external advisers and from the HR
Director and the Company Secretary

Directors’ emoluments

Remuneration Policy

It 1s the policy of the Committee to consider and approve
remuneration packages and other contractual teims that
attract, retain and motvate managers of the calibre
required 10 successfully manage an international Graup ot
the size and complexity of C&J Clark Limited In dong so
the Committee aims to ensure that such packages are
balanced, but not excessive, and that incentive schemes
are structuied se that they reflect the levels generally paid
to such executives

Directors’ Remuneration

Emoluments, compensation and long-term incentives in
respect of qualifying services of rach person who served as
a Director duning the year are isted in the two tables below

Information subject to audit

The audiors are recurred to report on the mformation in

the following sections of the report

- Directors’ remuneration, Including descriptions of the
long-term incentives schemes

«  Defined beneht pension schemes

- Directors’ pension entitlemerits

Perfannumne

Sa'ar1ey s Jppla:j:’:;lrmn;’ I:{:lrln,::j Bar piiy Towl 2010 Toval H¥%
t S E e UG o E 00D t P
Executive Directors
Peter Balhigar® 630 309 3/8 39 1,356 1,283
Robin Beacham™ 375 166 225 13 779 bbZ
Bob Infantino 546 - 287 20 853 485
Mehssa Potter™ 390 158 234 2 784 643
Non-Executive Directors
Peter Davwes 162 - - - 162 162
Hugh Clark 42 - - - 42 39
Harriet Halt &2 - - 1 &3 &6
Thomas O Neill 35 - - - 36 36
Nigel Hall 44 - - - 44 44
Stanley Kravetz 34 - - - 36 36

Senehts ansina from employmend by the Company relate mainly to the provision of company cars and hfe assurarce

' Peter Bolliger Robin Beacham and Melissa Fotter's salary supplements compensate for restuicuons mtroduced under he 1989 Finance Acton pensions providea

throuch the Fund please see paga 34

Long-term meentive plans

Poinan Prepde 1 Pani Provision
e aht frward irle aor nthayear  carried forward
£ 000 oG S0 £000

Executive Directors
Peter Bothiger 1,064 2784 - 3,848
Robin Beacham 633 1,413 - 2,044
Bob Infzntino 258 4590 - 748
Melssa Potter 787 1,250 - 2,037
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The Combined Code

The Board considers that they have complied with the
Combined Code provisions relating te Directors’
remuneration and have followed the provisions of Schedule
Ato the Combined Code

Directors’ Service Contracts

It 1s the policy of C&J Clark Limited to issue all new Executive
Directors with twelve month rolling service contracts There
are no provisions in Directers’ service contracts for
compensation n respect of early termination of a contract
There 1s however, an abligation 1o pay for any notice penod
wanved by the Company All Executive Directors’ service
contracts requite the Compary to give 12 manths notice to
terminate the contracts until the age of 60, when no notice
pernod 1s required Dates of serving Directors' service
contacts are as follows

|

Peter Bolliger 15t August 1994
Robin Beacham Tst July 2007
Bob Infantine 26th October 1992
Melissa Potter 1st June 1999

Salaries and Benefits

Salanes and benefits for Executive Directors are reviewed
annually and external advice taken as appropriate Directors’
remungration packages are benchmarked against
companies of a similar size and complexity

Performance Related Bonuses

Peter Bolliger and Robin Beacham participate in an annual
bonus scheme dependent on the financial performance of
the Group compared with budget Awaids are made on a
shding scale up to 0% of salary, based on footwear prolis
less 15% notiona! interest on a notiona! debt amount of
A0% of Group average operating capital For achieverment
of 90% of budgeted foowwear profits less notional interest,
a bonus of 15% of salary is payable No bonus 1s payable if
the result 15 lower The bonus payable increases by 1
percentage pont for every additional £608,000 by which
the actual result exceeds the mmvimum performance target

For achievement of the budgeted footwear profits less
notonol interest, a bonus of 30% of salary 15 peyable

Thereaftar, a 1% increase in bonus award 15 payable for
every addittonal £456 000 increase in the profi after
notional interest up 1o the maximum 60% of salan, at a
result 15% above budget The taiget 1s derived from the
published budget of the Group for the year This method
has been in use for thirteen years and was chosen as the
rmost consistent measure of underlying trading growth in
the business including the effect of changes in operating
caprtal employed within the Group

Melissa Potter participates in an annual bonus schame
dependant on the financial performance of Clarks
International compared with budget Awards are made on a
shdingscale up to 60% cf salary, based on Clarks International
piofits less 15% notional interest on a notional debt amount
of 40% of Clarks International average operating capital
For achieverent of 90% of budgeted Clarks Internasional
profits less notional interest, a bonus of 15% of salary
1s payable No bonus s payable 1if the result 15 lower
The bonus payable increases by 1 percentage point for
every addional £487 000 by which the actual resull pxceeds
the rinimum performance target For achievemeant ~f the
budgeted Clarks International profits lass notional interast,
a bonus of 30% of salary spayable Theiaafter, a 1% increase
in bonus award 1s payable for every additional £365 0600
increase 1n the profit after notional mterest up 1o the
maximurm 60% of salary at a 1esult 15% above budget
The target 1s denved from the published budget of Clarks
International for the vear

Clarks Compantes North Amenca Annual Management
Bonus Programme

Prowision 1s made for bonus awards to Bab Infantine
contingent on the financial performance of Clarks
Compames North Armenca compeared with budget Awards
are made on a shding scale For the achievement of a
min:mum performance target, a bonus of 15% of salary
15 payable No beonus s payable if the result 15 lower
The mimmum target 1s calculated at 90% of targeted trading
orofits less notional interest an average capital employed
Netional interest 15 calculated at an effective rate of 6%
The bonus rale increases anywhere irom 10% {o 15% for
each 10% improvement in actual versus targeted trading
profit The maximum bonus rate 15 60% of salary paysble at
a result of 20% above budget The target s derived from
the published budyet of the dvision for the year




Remuneration
Report

Continued

Long-term incentive Plan

Peter Bolhger, Robin Beacham, Melissa Potter and Bob
infanting are participants i this scheme which provides a
benefit of up to a maximum of 3 5 times annual salary
dependant on the financral performance of the Group,
Clarks International or Clarks Companies North Amenca
compared with the five year suategic plan over a three year
perniod Peter Boliger and Robin Beacham participate in a
scheme based on Group profit after 1ax, Melissa Potter
participates i a scheme based 25% on Group profit after
tax and 7%% on Clarks internationai profits and Bob Infantine
partiopates i a scheme based 25% on Group profit after
1ax and 75% on Clarks Companies North Amernica profity
The maximum award 1s payable if actual profits exceed
120% of strategic plan prohits overthe threevear performance
period No award 15 payable if actual profits are less than
85% of strategie plan profits For profit performance exactly
in ine with the strategic plan over the performance periad,
each of the Executive Directors will recaive a payment of
125 times annual salaty

Performance perods, each of a three year duration, have
commenced annually on st February since 2007 The first
performance perod came to an end 31st January 2010 and
awards relating to this scheme will be made :n March Thera
are now three schemes runming concurrently for the three
year perods commencing 1st February 2008, 1st February
2009 and 1st February 2010 Peter Bolliger was not granted
a Long-term Incentive Plan for the period 2009-2012 due to
his impending 1etirement As compensation, an alternative
arrangement was set up which prowides abeneftup to 146
times annual salary dependent on the financial performance
of the Group during the year 2009-2010 compared with the
five year strategic plan
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Senior managers and selected manageis of Clarks
International and Clarks Companies North America are also
members of the Clarks international and Clarks Companies
North America elements of tis scheme which operates in
the same way as that of the Executive Diectors except thar
the maximurn multiple of salary payable 15 2 5 umes for
senior managers and 15 times for managers For profit
performance exactly in Iinz with the strategic plan over the
performance pernod, seniormanagoers will recerve a payrnent
of 1 Q umes annual salary and managers 0 75 times annual
salary The shding scate 1s adjusted accordingly Performance
periods, each of a three year duration, have commenced
annually on 1st February since 2007 The fust performance
period came to an end 31st January 2010 and awards
relating to this scheme will be made in March There are
now three schermes running concurrently for the three year
peniods commencing st February 2008 1st February 2009
angd st February 2010

Share Incentive Plan

During the year the Group operated a Share Incentive Plan
Under the plan, eligible employees may save up to 1% of
their gross earnings which wilbe used Lo purchase ordinary
shares in the Company Cne matching (free) share will be
allocated for every partneishup share purchased by an

* employee These shaies rank for dividend and are held in

trust for @ minimum of three years before being transferred
to the employee




Total Shareholder Return

Tota! Shareholder Return (TSR) s a performance measure
based on the market value of an investment in shares of a
company over a given penod, in this case, five years TSR
assumes that all dividends are re-invested and any nghts
issues taken up It s assumed that the buyback proceeds
were also re-mvested in shares The TSR graph 1s based on
an inhial purchase of 100 shares in C&J Clark Limited on 1st
Februan, 2005 Compansonshowaisaganst the movements
in the FTSE 250 shaie index as the market capitalisation,
based on the share price calculated bi-annually by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, would make C&J Clark Limited a
FTSE 250 company
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The comparison shows C&J Clark Limited underperforms
the market trend friom 2006 to 2008 as the FTSE 250 shows
marked growth comparedto the TSR However, In 2007 the
TSR continues to shaw steady growth whilst the FTSE 250
returns 1o the levels expenenced at the beginning of the
five year period At 31st January 2010 the TSR cver the
previous five years s more than the return given by the FTSE
250 1f £100 had been mvested in C&J Clark Limited shares
in 2005 1t would now be worth £161, whereas the same
amount invested in FTSE 250 companies over the same
pariod would now, on average, be worth £153

TSR 1s a performance measurs used predomiantly for
publicly traded companies and thus may not be an entirely
reliable measure for a private company hke C&J Clark
Limited The external share valuation conducted by
PricewaterhouseCoopers assumes a willing buyet and seller,
is based on a minimal valume of transactions, and does not
fully take account of exteinat market forces
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Birectors’ Pension Entitlements

Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham participate in the C&J
Clark Pension Fund {'the Fund’} The Fund s contabutory
and 15 governed by an independent tiust Their normal
retirtement age undet the scheme 1s 60 and they accrue
retwernent benefits at the rate of one fortieth of pensionable
pay for each year of pensionable service, subject to certain

scheme limits

Early retrement 1s permitted at the age of 50 onveards {55
after 5th Apnit 2010}, subject to an actuarial reduiction o the
accrued pensien of up to 23%

The schemne continues to apply the hmits introduced unde:
the 1989 Finance Act apphcable to members joming HMRC
appioved schemes on or after 1st June 1989

For death before retirement, a capital sum equal to fow
times salary 1s payable A spouse’s pension 1s also payable
and this s hmited by the HMRC Earnings Cap restnction
For death in retirement, a spouse’s pension of 50% of the
member's pre commutation pension s payable [n the event
of death after feaving service but prior to commencement of
pension, a spouse’s pension of 50% of the accrued preserved
pension is payable Inall crcumstances, children’s allowances
are also payable up to the age of 18 Substantial protection
15 also offered Inthe event ot senousill health Post-retiement
pension increases are guaranteed at the rate of price mflabion
subject to a hmit of 8 5% per annum, compound between
the date of retiremeant and each annual pension review

Defined benefit pension schemes

In acdldition the Group has awarded salary supplements to
reflect the restrictions placed on pensions provided through
the Fund by HMRC

The salary supplements for Melissa Potter and Robin
Beacham are included n the Drectors’ emoluments table
on page 30

in 2005, the Commuttee extendadthe pension arrangements
for Peter Boiliger as follows

The existing salary supplement was continuad past
age 60

The pension benefit from the Fund calculated at age 60
will be increasad in the usual way to 1ake account cf the
period dunng which payment cf the benefit 1s deferred
from age 60 1o 65

- Inrespect of service after age 60, Peter Bolliger will be
entitled to an additional taxable retirement pension
according to an agreed formula with a maximum of
£20,000 per annum payable in the case of retrement
at age 65

I

Bob Infantino participates in the US defined benefit pension
plan, which 1s non-contnibutory and based on years of
service Normal retnement age under the schemea 1565 with
benefits payable at 1% of salary, capped at $230,00G This
benefit 15 reduced for sarly 1enrement by 3 33% for sach
year the pension age 18 between €0 and 65 and 6 67% for
each year the pension age 13 between 35 and 59, with o
minimum retrement age of 55 A capital sum of one years
salary together with a spouse’s pension s payable on death
before retirement Post 1etirement pensicn Increases are
discrelionary He s also a parhiopant n two defined
contnbution schemes Contributions to these schemes are
designed to compensate for the effect of the salary cap

A al Fsl Pers amable surrad naszae n Accrund lrar sfar Transfer [nrectors Increass

Japs,an servimatg pension ey audt acuive  pension benefit veluw Al value at contributions. in ransfer

2010 Flat Jar covv at I Fel any pomon at 3153 January 15t Fehiuary 318t Jasiary for the yaa value lass

20 kW ties mfire 2010 0 2010 to d1st January dirortery

2010 contributions

Years Years £'000 £000 £7000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Peter Bolliger® 65 15 52 6 58 1,028 1.071 - 43
Robin Beacham* 50 20 73 8 81 1,154 1,327 10 143
Bob Infanting &0 17 37 - 37 295 326 - 31
Melissa Potter* 42 10 78 4 82 925 1,014 10 81

*mdnduals benefis unde- the Group's UK Pension Fund a-e subject to an Eamings Cap (£123,600 at 31st January 2010}
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Money Purchase Penston Schemes
The Group made the following contnbutions to money
purchase schemes dunng the year

Maney Purchase Pension Schemes

2010 2009
£ 060 £ 600
Rob Infantino 78 1)

Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Chairman 1s determined by the
Caommittee The Executive Directors determine
remuneration of the other Non-Executive Directors of the
Company Romuneration consists of fees for their services n
connection with Board and Board committee meetings
They do ot have cortiacts of service and must retie after
nine years’ service or such other period as the Company
agrees by special resolution They are not eligible fol
pension scheme membership They do not participate in
the Group's bonus scheme or other incentive schemes

This report will be laid belore the sharehaolders for approval
at the Annual General Meeting to be beld on 7th May 2010

On behalf of the Board

Hugh Clark
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

24th March 2010
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Board of

Directors

Robin Beacham joined the Group mn 1990 from Asthur
Andersen and carned outa number of financial management
roles before becoming Financial Controller in 1996 He was
appointed to the Board as Finance Director on 28th
June 2001

Thomas J O'Neill was appointed to the Board as an
independent Non-Executive Director on 10th May 2004 He
has mare than 25 yeals' experence in international retailing
and brand management, most recently as CEO and Drrector
of Harry Winston, Inc where he also concurrently held the
pasition of President and Director of Harry Winston
Diamond Corporaton {formerly Aber Diamond Cormpany),
the sole owner of Harry Winston Inc Prior to Harry Winston
he was Worldwide President of Burberry, Divisional
President and CEQ at LWMH, and Executive Vice-President
of Tiffany & Company

Judith Derbyshire ;oined the Group in 1989 and she was

appointed as Company Secretary in 1991 She 1s a solicitor,
and 15 Chair of Goveinos of Millfield School
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Bob Infantino has over 35 years’ experience in the footwear
industry and was Senior Vice President of Product
Development, Merchandising and Marketing at The
Rockport Company before joining Clarks in 1992 He s
President of Clarks Companies North Amenca and was
appointed to the Board an 25th September 2002

Melissa Potter jomed the Group as a graduate in 1988 and
carned out various management roles before becoming
Managing Director of the UK Dwvision in 2002 She was
appointed 1o the Board as Managing Ducctor, Clarks
International on 21st June 2006

Peter Bolliger worked in the shoe business from 1968-90
before joming Harrods as Managing Director for the period
1990-94 He joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed to
the Board on 2%id February 1996 He was sppomnted Chief
Executive on 16th August 2002



Stanley Kravetz was appointed as a Non Executive Director
in May 2007 He has more than 30 years’ experience in
bulding Global Brands, as Executive Vice President and
Duector of Tunberland, President of Frye Boot, President of
Rockpart and Vice President of Reebok and President of
Thorlo Clarks was his first European customer during his
tenure at Timbeiland

Peter Davies was appomnted a3 Non-Executive Diractor in
September 2005 and becarne Non-Executve Chairman in
May 2006 He has more than 20 years’ expenence in UK
and International retall, most recantly as Chief Executive
of Rubicon Retail Ltd Whilst Clarks 1s his main role, Peter 15
also Non-Executive Chairman of Whistles Holdings Ltd ,
a Non-Executive Director of Fust Friday Ltd and a Partner
mn Mint Velvet ILLP

Hugh Clark was appointed as & Non-Executive Director in
May 2005 andbecame Charof the Rernuneration Committee
in November 2008 He was a member of the Family
Shareholdor Council from its inception in 1993 until joming
the Board He joined Clarks #s a graduate v 1985 and spent
eleven years in the business before joiring Rohan in 1996
He became a Director in 1997 and was Managing Director
of Rehan from 2001 until 2007 Hugh s also a Non-Executive
Director of Quba Saills Ltd

Nigel Hall was appointed as an independent Non- Executive
Director on 1st Maich 2006 and 1s Chairman of the Audst
Committee and of the Share Valuation Committes of the
Board MNigel s a chartered accountant who qualified with
Price Watethouse before joiming the fashion retader The
Burton Group plc {renamed Arcadia Group plc i 1998)
where he served as Finance Director from 1997 until 2003
Nigel 15 also the Non-Executive Chairman ol Countrywide
Farmers plc and a Non-Executive Director of Unite Group
plc and Pinewood Shepperon plc

Harniet Hall was appomted as a Non Executive Director on
7th May 1999 and became Deputy Chairman in May 2006
She was Chair of the Famitly Shareholder Counal from 1993
to 1998 She s a solailor and a Non-Executive D ector of
the South London and Maudsley Mental Health Trust
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Directors’
Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st January 2010

Business review

The principal activities of the Company and its related
subsidianes are worldwide shoe retailing and wholesahng,
and related trades Further details of the operations and the
trading results are set out on pages 8 to 19 The profit after
tax of the Group for the year was £60 8m A list of the major
overseas subsidianes of the Company may be found on
page 70 i
A review of the Group's performance during the yeat,
expected future developments and principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Chief Executive’s Report and the
Financial Review The headings below, as required by a
business review, are cross-referred to these statements

Scene setting — Chuef Executive s Report pages 10 to 11
Objecuves of the Group - Chief Executive’s Report pages
10te 15

Strategy — Chief Executive’s Report pages 11 to 15

Risks and uncertainties - Chiel Executive’s Report pages
141015

Measurement — Chief Executive’s Report pages 1010 15
Performance — Chief Lxecutive s Report pages 10to 15
Forward looking ~ Chief Executive's Report pages 1410 15

Directors

The current Directors of the Group are Iisted on pages 38
and 39 There weie na changes in the composition of the
Board during the year, although Peter Bolliger and Harret
Hall will retire at the impending Annual General Meeting

In accordance with the Company's Memorandum and
Articles, Bob Infantino Thomas J OFNeill and Melissa Potter
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meegting All three seek re-election We will also be
appointing Timothy Drew Campbell Detalls of the Directors'
senvice contracts are given 1n the Remuneration Report on
pages 30 to 35

Share Buyback

On 10th July 2009 the Company repurchased 601,974 £1
ordinary shares at a price of £6 50 per share These shares
represented 1% of the 1ssued share capital at that date and
the 1o1al cost to the business of the transaction was £3 9m
The repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled

Fixed Assets
tn the opiruon of the Directors, the market value of land, on an

existing use basis 1s not significarsly different to book value
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Employees

The Boardbelievesthat the principle of equality of treatment
and opportunity is of fundamental mpartance itslong held
atm 15 1o provide just and fairtreatment for all employees In
accordance with this policy, the only personal atinibutes
which will be taken into account in making deaisions about
employees are those which retate directly to actual or
potentizl performance Throughout the Group, procedures
for consultaticn with, and the involvement of, employees
are In operation, as appropriate to tha circumstances of the
incividual businesses Information on matters of concern to
empioyees 15 given through a vanety of presentations,
briefings, bulletins and reports

The Environment

The Group recognises that care and concern for the
enviicnment and the commumty are a fundamental part of
the Group's strategy It s the Group's intention to strive
conunuously to minimise any adverse environmental impact
of business activities, to comply with all relevant
environmental legislatron and to promote a canng attitude
to the environment amongst s employses A statement of
commitment from the Group in s ervitonmental policy s
shown on pages 2610 29

Directors’ Interests

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the
Compary ate shown in the table on page 41 A list of
transactions with related parties 15 given in note 24 1o the
firancial staterments There vere no changes in Directors’
share interests between the end of the year and 13th March
7010 (being ona month before the date of the notice of the
Annual General Meeting)

Donations

Donations for chantable purposes marde by the Group
during the year amounted to {0 8m (2009 0 Sm)
No donations were made for pohtical purposes

Creditor Payment Policy

The Group’s policy 15 1o use standard payment terms,
payment being at the end of the month following the
involce date, except for gocds for resale which are genarally
30 days For all trade creditors it 1s the Group's policy to

~ settle terms of paymentwith suppliers,

- ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment,

- make every effort to meet agreed payment dates
provided that the agreed terms and conditions have
been met by the suppliers

Corporate Governance
The Group remams commutted to the hughest standards of
corpoiate governance A report 1s set out on pages 22 to 24

Going Concern

After making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group andthe Company have adequate
resources (0 contnue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future Accoidingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements




Directors' Interests

At Vst Isnunry AT sy

2010 e il

Ordinary Exacutive Crdinary Exotis @

Shares*  Shora Teust™ SUaimst Sl Trmn

Peter Bolliger - - 6,218 -
Robin Beacham 1,026 - 1,026 -
Bab Infanuno 7107 - 7107 -
Melissa Potter 2,093 - 2,093 -
Peter Davies 3,500 - 3,500 -
Huah Clark 323,172 323170 -
Harmet Hall 3,424,293 - 3658693 -
Thomas J O'Naill - - -2
Niget Hall 3,000 - 3.000 -
Stanley Kravetz - .o

" Tre sharenoldings shown do not, in every case represent the bereficial merests held

** Tha Execuave Diectows as potential benefivianes under J.e Company's share schemas are Jeemed to be mizested 1n unzlocated C&J Clark Limied
ordinary shares held by the C&J Clark Executive Share Tust These do not ~epresent saneficial interests At 3151 Jvary 2015 “here wale no shares helo by
the Trust (2007 - bt

Directors’ Responsibifities

So far as the Directors aie awaie, there 1s no 1elevant audht
mformauon {information needed by the Group's auditors
In connection with preparing their report) of which the
Greup's auditors are unaware and each Director has taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken os a Dwrector in
order to make theamselves aware of any relevant audit
informatian and to establish that the Group’s auditors are
aware of that information

Auditors

in accordance with Section 185 of the Companies Act 2004,
the auditors will be deemed to be re-appointed and KPMG
LLP vl therefore remam in office

By Qcd
Jt.D!th Dérby:
Company Sec

of the Board

24th March 2010
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Statement of
Directors’
Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
annual report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual
report and the financial statements v accordance with
apphic able law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financral
statemants for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements
in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

The Gioup and Parent Company financtal statements are
required by law to give 2 true and fair view of the state
of affarrs of the Company and the Group as at the end of
the hinancial year and of the profit or less of the Group for
that period

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are
required 1o

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply
thermn consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

—  state whether applicable UK accounting standards have
been followed, subject to any matenal depariures
discdosed and explained in the inancial statements, and

- prepare the financial staterments on the geing concern

basis unless 1t 15 inappropnate to presume that the
Company wili continue in business
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The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounung
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financiel statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have yeneral tespansibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregulanties

The Drirectors have decided to prepare voluntartly a
Drrectors’ Remuneration Repart in accerdance with Section
421 to the Comparues Act 2006, as if those requirements
were to apply to the Company The Directors have also
decided to prepare voluntanly a Corporate Governance
staternent as if the Company were required to comply with
the Listing Rulfes of the Financial Services Authornity in
relation to those matters



Independent
Auditors’ Report

We have audited the financial statements of C&J Clark
Limited for the vear ended 31 January 2010 set out on
pages 4610 70 The financial reporung framework that has
been appled in thair preparation 1s applicable faw and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Pracuce)

In addition to cur audit of the financial statements, the
Directors have engaged us to audit the information in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as having
been audited, which the Directars have decided to prepare
{in addition to that required to be prepared) as if the
Company were required to comply with the requirernents
of Schedule 8 to the Companies Act 2006 The Large and
Med um-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 (51 2008 No 410)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s mermbers, as
a body. In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and, 1in respect of the separate
opiion in relatien to the Directors’ Remuneration Report,
on terms that have been agreed Qur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state ta the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them
n an auditory' report and, in raspect of the separate
opinion 1n relation to the Directors” Remuneration Repait,
those matters that we have agrecd Lo state to them in our
report, and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do notaccept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
maembers, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opirvons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 42, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give o true and far view
Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical
Standards ior Audtors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
Adescrphion of the scope of an audit of financial statements
15 provided on the APB's web-site at www {rc org uk/apb/
scope/UKNP

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinon the finanoal statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and
the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 January 2010 and
of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

— have been properly prepared 1n accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared in accordance withthe requirements

of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion an other matter prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006 and under the terms of our engagement

In our opmion

- the part of the Duectors’ Remuneration Report which we
were engaged to audit has been prooerly prepared in
accordance with Schedule 8 to the Comparues Act 2006
The Large and Medium-sized Compames and Groups
{(Accounts and Reports) Requlations 2008, as if those
requirements were to apply 1o the Company, and

- the iwformation given in the Directors’ Report for the
financial year far which the financial statements are
prepared s consistentwith the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

matters where under the Companias 2Act 2006 and under

the terms of our engagement we are required to report o

you if, in our opinion

- adeguate accounting records have nct been kept by the
parent company, ot returns adequate for our aydit have
not been received fiom branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company inancal staternents and the part of
the Directors’ Remiuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

- gertam disclosures of drectors’ remuneration specfied
by law are not made, or

- wehave notreceived all the information and explanations

weqequire lor opr audt
ﬁé Cam;Zeli.Orde (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statuter, Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Bristol

24th March 2010
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Group Profit and Loss Account

T i
ﬂéﬁiiﬂ%ﬁ@%}”‘ s%{ e 5
b i W e R e el P
Bafore Bere e
axceptional Exceptional eriapuonat Eacephonc
{ams 1G5 Total o [ TN Treat
2010 2010 2010 e AN P31
Notes £m fm fm fm fm fm
Turnover Ty 11735 - 1,1735 11220 - 11220
Costs less other income 2{a) (1,064 0) (33} (1,0673) (1,025 1) - (1,025 1}
1095 33) 106 2 99 - 969
Long-term incentive schemes 2 (a) (12 1) - (12 1) 3 4) - (36
Operating profit 2 {a) 674 (33} 941 933 - 933
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 3(a) - 09 09 - 05 05
Profit on disposal of land held for resale 3} - 39 3.9 - - -
Profit before interest 974 1.5 ‘9B 9 933 05 938
Qther net finance costs 4 13 8) - (13 8) (70 - 70
Profit before taxation 836 15 851 863 05 8368
Taxation 5 (24 B} 05 {24 3) (24 8) - (24 8)
Profit for the financal year 58 8 2.0 60.8 &t 5 05 620
Earnings per ordinary share 7 78 3p 33p 101 &p 101 8p 08p 102 ép

The notes G pages 510 7 Jiorm p-rl of these nanaial suatemerts
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Balance Sheets

v s 5o e
Notes fm frmy £m frm
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 8 ) 06 - -
Tangible assets 9 {a) 186 9 2026 - -
Investments 10 24 16 780 778
189.9 2051 780 778
Current assets
Land held for resala 11 13 43 - -
Siock 12 2316 2725 - -
Debrors 13 127.2 1318 1950 2249
Cash at bank and in hand 1234 568 50 3 188
4835 465 4 2453 2437
Creditors - amounis falling due witrun one year 14 (210.1) {179 4) (2337 (152 1)
Net current assets 2734 7860 116 AN
Total assets less current liabilities 4633 4911 89.6 169 4
Creditan s — amounts falling due after mare than one year 15 {11.0) 68 1) - 59
Provisions for liabilitses and charges 16 (29 6) 20 3) - -
Net assats excluding pension hability 4227 4027 89.6 1135
Pension habihty 22 {100.2) (114 2) - -
Net assets mcluding pension hability 3225 2885 896 1135
Capital and reserves
Calleg-up share copital 18 5946 602 596 302
Share premium account 19 04 04 04 04
Capital reclemption reserve 19 179 173 179 173
Merger reserve 19 15.1 151 - -
Proft and loss account 19 229.5 1955 117 356
3225 2885 89.6 1135

Equity shareholders’ funds

The notes on pages 50 to 70 form part of these financial statements

The firancial statements of C& J Clark Lid, registered number 3314066, were approved by the Board of Directors and signed

on therr behalf on 24th March 2010

Pet avies

qlg\/\quow%

Robin Beacham

Ideaconseen

47




Group Cash Flow Statement

i SN
2010 e
MNotes fm {m
Cash flow from operating activities 25 171.2 695
Returns on investments and servicing of firance 26(a) (19 (25
Tanatian {20 4) (26 3)
Capital expenditure and financial investment 26(b) {19 8) {331
1293 16
Equity dvidends paid {16 5) {161
Net cash inflow/{outflow) befcre financing ' 1128 (85
Financing 26{c) {64 0} 11
increase n cash in the year 48 8 26

Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement
in Net Borrowings

2010 PiLa
Notes fm fm
Increase in cash in the year _ 488 4
Czsh flow from decrease{increase) in debt 26(c} 60 1 (14 9)
Change n net borrowings resutting from cash flows 108 9 (123
Currency translation adiustrnents (20) 19
Decreasa/(increase) in net borrowings in the year 1056.9 (10 4)
Opening net borrowings (29 5) (19 1)
Closing net cash/(borrowings) 27 77.4 (29 5

The 1otas an vages 50 to /0 fanm part of these finanoal satements
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Group Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and Losses

2010 JoAN

£m fm
Profit for the finanwial year 60.8 620
Cunency tanslation adjustments {12 5) 295
Actuanal can/fioss) on pension schemes inet of deferred taxation) 35 {52 5)
Deferred tax on pension lizbility ansing from change in tax rate 04 -
Total recognised gains and losses anising during the financial perod 54.2 390

Reconciliation of Movements in
Equity Shareholders’ Funds

\,11- =
?i@s” @ffgﬁi"gwm% SO o

Group Grows Company U Y

2010 Hw 2010 HTR

£fm fm £fm fm

Tolal recagnised gains and losses ansing during the financaial year 54 2 390 (3 5) 36
Dividends paid (16 5) 161} {16 5) (16 1)
Share-based payment 02 02 02 a2
Share buyback 39 RR%)] (3.9 39
340 192 (239 (23 4}

Disposal of shares in 1elation to employee share schemas - 01 - -
Net increase/[decrease) in equity shareholders' funds duning the financial penod 340 193 (23 %) (23 4)
Opeting equity shareholders' funds 2885 2692 1135 1369
Closing equity sharehalders' funds 3225 2885 896 1135

Group Note of Historical
Cost Profits and Losses

2010 w0
fm £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 851 868
Difference between histoncal cost depreciation charge
and ac tual depreciatron charge for the year - ”
Historical-cost profit-on-ordinary-activities before-taxation—- — — 85-1— — -868
Historical cost profit for the year retained after taxation &0.8 620

The notey o0 pages 50 to 70 ka m pat of these finantial staternents
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Accounting
Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
histonical cost convention as moedified to include the
revaluauon of freehold and long leasehold land and buildings
and 0 accordance with applicable accounting standards

The hnancial staterments for the Company and all matenal
subsidianies are drawn up to the nesrest Saturday to the 31st
January n line with retail industry practice The year to 31st
January 2010 comprises 52 weeks (2009 - 52 waeks)

These financial statements have been prepaied under the
going concern basis as discussed in the Directaors’ Report

The following accounting policies have been applied
conststently throughout the year There have been no
changes in accounting policies since last year

Basis of Consalidation

The Group finangial statements compnise a consolidation of
the {inancial statements of the Parent Company and all of its
subsidianes The principal subsidianes are listed on page 70

Investments m Subsidiary Companies
Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at ¢ost ioss
provisions far any iImpairment in value

Revenue Recognition

Sales duning the normal course of business are recognised
on legal transfer of ttle, and are accounted for net of sales
discounts sales taxes and returned goods

Profits on sales of property are recognised on completion,
unless the exchange of contracts 1s uncenditional in which
case the profit 1s recognised at that stage Rental income 1s
accounted for on a recewable basis

Foreign Currency Transiation

Assets and habilines denominated in fareign currencies are
translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Profit and losses of overseas subsidianes
are translated into sterling at avel age rates of exchange

Fxchange differences arising on the retranslation of the
opening net assets of ovelseas subsidianes, less exchange
differences ansing on related foreign currency borrowings,
are taken to reserves and disclosed in the Group Staterent
of Tatal Recognised Gains and Losses on page 49, together
with any related tax charges or credits All other exchange
differences are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account

50

Financial Instruments

The Group uses financial instruments to ranage its exposure
to fluctuations inforeign currency exchange rates Currently
the only instruments used are forward currency contracts
and currency option contracts Gains and fosses on fonward
contracts and options, entered into as hedges of future
purchases and sales denomnated in foreign currency, are
carned forward and taken 1o the Profit and Loss Account on
maturty to match the underying transactions The Group
has taken advantage of the exemption availlable for short-
term debtors and creditors

Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible fixed assets
excepting freehold land and assets in the course of
canstruction, in order to wute off the enginal cost, fess
estimated resiciual value evenly aver the average expected
useful Ide of the aaset as {ollows

Freehold and long leaseholdbulldings 50 years

Short leasehold property lower of 14 years or
the life of the lease
orthe penodtothe
first rent reviow

Plant, machinery and fixtures 3~ 20 years

Motor vehicles 3-5Syears

Computer hardware 3- 10 years

Capitalisation of Software Costs

Software costs are capitahised and amortised over 3 to 10
years Where appiopnate these costs include elements of
fees pard to external consultants

Leased Assets

Fixed assets he!d under finance teases have been
capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful
lives The related lease obligauons have been included in
creditors The finance charges have been charged to the
Profit and Loss Account over the primary penod of the
lease Oporating lease rentals have been charged to the
Profit and Loss Account as incurred

intangible Fixed Assets
Trademarks are stated at puichase cost and amortised over

a period ot 20 years

When a franchisee enters mto an agreemont with the Group
1o operate an mternational franchise store, under the terms
of the agreement the Group may pay the franchisee a
contribut on as consideration for agreeing to the terms of
the agreement in respect of the opening and operation of
the store, including a minimum purchasing requirement
This contribution 1s caprtahsed as a franchise licence and
the cost s amortised over the length of the agreement
which 1s 5 years



Lease Incentives

Whare the Greup receives an incentive o take on a property
lease by way of a capital contnbution or a discounted or free
rental period, the benefit 1s spread over the ecarlier of the
penod to the first rent review or to the end of the lease as a
recuction in rental costs

Research and Development
All expenditure on research and development s written off
in the year in which 1t 1s incurred

Stock
Stock has been stated at the lawer of cost and net

realisable valie

Land held for Resale

Land held for resale represents the cost of land at
Houndwood The Group has made a decision to control the
design and development of the Houndwood site for
sustainable residential housing and as such will incur general
site infrastricture expenciture, undertake design work and
package the land for sale to thied party developers in phases
The asset s treated as a current asset held for resale

Deferred Taxation

Full prowvision 1s made for deferred tax assets and habilities
arising from timing differences oetween the recogrition of
gams and losses in the financial statements and ther
recognition i 3 tax computation Deferred tax 15 not
raccgnised on permanent differences such as revaluation
gains, gains rolled over into new assets and unremitted
Overseas eanngs

Pension Costs

The cost of providing pension benefits has been charged to
the Profit and Loss Account in accordance with the
requerements of FRS 17 Retrrement Benefits'

Share-based Payments

The Group operates an All Empioyee Share Incentive Plan
{SIP} Under the scherme employees are given afree matching
share for each partnership shaie purchased at market value
This has been accounted for under FRS 20 'Share-based
payments' Under the standard the matching shares qualify
as equity scitled share-basad payments 1o be recognised at
fair value at the date of grant Effectively the fair value of a
matching share 1s the cost of the partnership share The cost
of the share based payments must be spread over the
period unul the shares are owned by the employee (the
vesung pertod) The vesting period for the matching shares
15 four years This has resulted in a current year charge
of £0 2m (2009 - £0 2m)

Company Profit and Loss Account

in accordance with Section 282 of the Companies Act 2006,
a separate Profit and Loss Account has not been published
for the Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements

In these nates to the financial staterments the headings '2010" refer to the yeer ended 315t January 2010 or the balance shest as at
31st January 2010 and the headings ' 2009 refer to the year ended 315t January 2009 or the balance sheet as at 31st January 2009

The turncver and profits of the Group dermve from its actvibies in the shoe trade

a) Analysis of profiv/{loss) by gecgraphical area of ongin \
Profit bafore Prafit bafors Prolit t-of e P olit Lmf sre
excaptional Exceptional Interest and arceptnatal Exipy nonal Wv ergstan
tems Hems taxation e et 13 v ation
2010 2010 2010 raw 200 0048
£m £m £m fm m fm
UK 737 4.8 805 724 05 759
North Am.arica 17.0 (3 3) 13.7 138 - 138
Europe 12 - 12 23 - 23
Rest of the World 35 - 35 18 - 18
97 4 15 98.9 933 G5 938
b) Analysis of trnover and capizal employed
Turnaver by Tainerese iy Turnover by Taese by Capital < oy dot
gnagraphical aec grapthe ol ultimata fur st employed by arolaye th
arva of Tnearf gaographical 10 pepl gecgraphical i e e el
origin [ miarkut t ket Bres iz
2010 Paind 2018 A 2010 2005
fm £m fm fm fm fm
UK _ 691 2 &91 6 591 1 58§ 7 2_3?_.%___ 2573
North Amenca 3914 3509 396 5 ”H7 4 106 4 1610
Europe 575 554 120.6 1194 127 141
Rest of the Warld 334 239 653 598 346 bé
Tolal footwear 1,1735 1,1720 1,1735 1,122 0 3601 4390
Unellocated tems - - - - (7 0} 45
1,173 5 11220 1,173 5 1,1220 3531 4435
¢} Recenciliation of capital ernplayed and net assets
2010 ey
fm fm
Capntal employed - (see note 1{b)) 3531 4435
Net cash‘{boirowings) - (see note 27) 774 {29 5)
Defened taxation - (see note 17) (7 8} {113}
Penston hability — (see note 22) {100 2) 1142
Net assets 3225 2885
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a) Costs less ather income

Before Befora
exceptional Excoptional vria] v ral E ¢y tional
s items Total 1o v lotal
2610 2010 2010 g 08 e
fm fm £fm fm fm £
furnover 1,1735 - 11735 1,1220 - 11220
Cost of sales {603 5) - {603 5) (590 4) - (590 4)
Gross proiit 5700 - 5700 5316 - 5316
Distribution cosis (298 3) - (298 3) (287 4} - (287 4)
Adrmunistrative cosis {174 3) (3 3) (177 6) {1509} {150 9
Operating profit 974 (3.3) 941 933 - 933
Administratine expenses include the cost of long-term incentive schemes as [ollows
2010 EAGH
fm Fm
Long-term Incentive Plan 110 44
Clarks Comparuas North Amenica Incentive Plan 11 {0 8)
121 35
These schemes are detaled in the Remuneration Report on pages 3010 35
b} Exceptional items charged n arriving 2t operaung profit are
Cnstof Dutrbun s a TAIISTE Mive Toral
saies xRty Calatr) TPy 2010
£ fm fm £m
C.osts of valuntary sevarance programme in North America - - 133 {3 3)
- - (33) {(33)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Continued

cp Other costs charged in arriving at operating profit md lude

2010 P
fm fm
Depreciatien 2 and Imparments of ‘owned 3ssets 275 83
F\Ei(_‘ﬂh)i s remuneration - T S T
Audit of these fimancial statements 0.5 (E
Arnounts tecavable by aurtors n respect of T T
Other services relating to taxation g1 01
Other senaces 0.2 08
Operat ng lease rentals o
Larnd andd buddings 881 879
Plan‘r ard equipment 20 13
Operating lease ental mcome T T TTTT T mo
Land and L-wldu rgs 59) 51
Sharvbased payment T
Laurty-settled 01 02
Parent Company audit fees were Znil (2009 - £nil)
d) Average number of full-time and part-time employees
20180 SET
Number  Number
Salrs and distrbution 12,122 12,241
Admiristration 1,242 1,184

13,364 13,425

Th~ average number of employees has be 1 calculated on a monthly weighted average The toal number of employees at th»
vesr-and was 13,426 (2009 - 13,308

e) Cmployment costs in respect of the foregoing

2010 ey
£fm fro
Waqes and salares 190 8 1817
Soaal secunty costs 19.4 201
Pension _cjr;ent service cost - defined benefil schame (see note MZ"E}WWWWW Y Y
Pension ¢ ontrnbutions — delined contnibution scherre see note 20 05 04
1 ong-term incentive EEJ%ErTms ~seencte 2] I T X T
) 229.6 2133
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1} Aggregate emoluments of the Directars

2018 AT

£m fm

Non-Executive Directors’ fees and benefits 04 G4
Executiva Directors’ services —Salanes and benelits 338 31
- Long-term mcentives 39 17

101 52

Pension contributions ~ money purchase pension scheme 01 01
102 53

More detaled information concerning Directors’ share enttlerments and emoluments, including long-term incentive schemes,

ts shown n the Rermnunzration Report on pages 30 to 35
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

a) Profit on disposal of fixed assets

2010 AN

£fm fm
Property disposals surplus over net book value o9 g5
b} Profit on disposal of land held for ressle

M0 i 1

£m £m
isposal profit on sate of Houndwood land 3.9 -

2014 2007

fm fm

Interest payable on bank loans and overdratts 22 32
Inzerest rezeivable (0 2} {07)
Net intarest cast on assets and habilities of pension scheme {ses note 22) 118 15
13.8 70
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a) Analysis of charge in the year

2010 Pat e
fm fen
Current taxation
UK taxation
UK corporation tax at 28 0% (2009 — 28 3%) . 18.0 222
Adjustrments In respect of prior years 02 an
Total UK taxation . 182 211
Qverseas taxation
Current taxation on ncome for the year 62 54
Adjustments in tespect of prior years 01 -
Total overseas taxation 63 L4
Total current taxation 245 265
Movernent in deferred 1axation
Net pension hability ongination and reversal of tming differences (see note 22} 30 01
Other onginauon and reversal of uming dfferences (see note 17} (32 (7 8)
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 243 58

h} Factors affecting tax charge

The taxation assessed for the year 15 higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK which 1s 28 0% (2009 - 28 3%!

The differences are explained below

2010 Pl

fm Em

Profir on ordinary activities before taxation 85.1 858
At standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 238 2448
Higher taxation rates on ovelseas earnings 0.7 09
Depre.iat:on on ders not qualifying for caprtal allowances 08 07
Profi- on disposal of assets not quahfying for capital allowances - Qn
Overseas taxabion losses on 0 &
Adjustments in respect of prior years D7? (13
Cther {10) 06
243 244

Movement in defaired taxation 02 i7
Total current taxation {see note 5 (a)] - 245 265
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Contnued

200 ans
fm im
Equity dvedende paid inine year
Minal erdimary share d vidend for the year ended 3ist January 2009 of 19 5o (2008 - 18 5p) 1Mz 13
Interim ordinary shara dividend for the year ended 31st January 2090 0f B0p (2009-80p) 48 48
18.5 161

The tinal urdinary share dividend proposed for the year ended 31st January 201015 20 Op per shere 2009~ 19 5p)
In addition, a spewat dividend has been oroposed of 100p per share (2009 - nil} payable in March 2010

Basic carnings per ordinary share nave been caleulated by dwviding the profit after taxation of £60 8m (2009 - £462 Om)
by the weighted & erage number of crdinary shares i issue durnng the year of 58,846,283 (2009 - 60,424,964)

Trademark Totrd
fm £m

Cost or valuation
Ad 16t Februany, 2009 06 06
Capnal expenditzjm — ~
Disposals T T T e s
At 31st January 2010 0.6 06
Depreciation
At 11 Fenruary 2009 - -
Charge for theyear o CooTT e
Disosals - -
At 31st January 2010 - -
Net book value
At 31st January 2010 ) . 06 06
At Tst February 2009 Gé Oé

The traclemark relates to the Clarks brand name in Brazl
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a) Summary

Land and Land and Lond and Plant and
buldings buldings buikiings nd
Freshold  Long leasehalc  Short tsasahold aquipment Tatal
im £m £m £m £fm
Cost or valuation
At 1st February 2009 551 08 412 2662 3633
Reclassthcation 7 - 01 02 0B
Exchange rate adiustments {13} - 34 53 (100
Capiial expenditure 03 - 26 155 184
Disposals ©3) - 06) (75 B4
At 31st January 2010 54.5 08 397 2691 364 1
Depreciation
At 15t February 2009 57 01 169 1380 1607
Reclassilicaton - - 0w 01 03
Exchange rate adjustmerts {01} - 12 (30 44
Charge for the yoar 10 - 36 229 775
Imparment - - - - -
Dispasals ©n - Y 63 b9
At 31st January 2010 &5 01 190 151 6 177 2
Net book value
At 315t January 2010 4890 07 207 117 5 186.9
At 1st February 2009 494 G/ 243 1282 2026
b) Valuation of land and buddings
Freshold  Long lossahold  Short leasshold Total
fm £m fm £m
Land and bulldings are stated at
Valuation less depreciation 56 07 - 63
Cost less depreciation 42 4 - 207 631
48.0 07 20.7 69 4
At historical cost, the comparable amounts would be
Cost 530 06 393 ¢29
Depracigtion (66} ©01) (18 &) {25 3)
Net hook value 46.4 05 207 &7 6

In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 15, freehold and long feasehold land and buildings are shown at
valuation on adaption of FRS 15 and will not be updated The gross bogk value of freehold land and bulldings includes

£14 7m 12009 - £14 8m) of land which 1s not depreciated

) Leased assets

Plant and egqupment includes leased assets with a net book value of £ril (2009 - fnil)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

Listed Unlistaxt
Invastments investments Total
£m £m £fm
Net book values at 1st February 2009 148 01 19
Exchanga rate adjustments N o ) w2z -0y
Addilions 07 - o7
Net book values at 31st January 2010 2.3 01 24
hj Company
Shares in e w
swubsigoary Suy schary
undartaldngs RS A
2410 A
fm im
Net book values at Tst February 2009 - o 778 76
Addiion/increase in net assots 02 0?2 |
Disposzls - -
Net book values at 31st January 2010 780 778

2010 P
£m frn
Land held to resalz 13 13
13 43

[ andd heled for rosale reprasents Houndwood land wineh s curtently under devslopmendt for resale

2010 s

fm {m

Finished goods and goods held tar resale 231 6 2725
. . ) 231.6 2925
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Sor % o e

fm fm £m £m

Trade debtors 1016 1067 15 -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 193.5 2249
Other debtors 1.4 13 - -
Prapayments and accrued income 24 2 232 - -
Amounts falling due wathin ona year 127 2 1312 1950 2249
Trade debtors falling due after more than one year - Q1 - -
Cther debtors falling due after more than ane year - G5 - -
Amounts faling due after more than one year - 04 - -
127 2 1318 195.0 249

Group Group Company Compars

2010 2R 2010 00

£fm fm fm fm

Bank loans and overdrals 460 304 - -
Trade craditors 88 8 957 - -

Amounts owed to cther Group undertakings - - 2337 1521

Current taxaton mnmzaz 75 - -

Social secunty S T30 25 -

Cther creditors 14 6 81 - -

Accruals and deferred income 4565 352 - -

2101 1794 2337 152 1

Gors O ¢ e
£m tm £m fm
Long-term loans - 559 - 559
Other creditors 11.0 122 - -
"o 681 - 559

Amounts falling due between
one and two years - 559 - 559
two and five years 24 - - -
anter five vears 86 122 - -
110 68 1 - 559
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Contnued

s

A Pricede 4 At

tat Febn e Eahargs rale Irglpace & F1st Jangary

07 PRARE Ll nycar Vnlisg £ 2010

fm im fm frn £m

Long-term Incentve Plan 57 - no 02 17 5

Clarks Comparnes North Amenca Incentive Plan 03 - 11 - 14

Restructuring 05 - 30 (29 06

Difapidation provision 03 - a7 02 08

%SL%EE‘EE"— provision o 08 - G3 03 08
Other T 04 01 03 o1 0.7

90 01 154 B7 21.8

Deferred taxation (see note 17) 113 03 32 - 78

203 02 132 (37 29.6

e L
Group fee b
2010 20
£m Em
Accelerzted capital allowances 100 112
Haldaver relief, capital gains taxation lowses 03 -
“E!EUTJEUOH of LIFO mventory reserves in North Amenca anc Japan 44 50
Shart-term tiring difierences : (69 49
7.8 113
Group
' £m
Provision at 1st February 2009 113
Exchange rate sdjustrment o - o 03
Deferred taxation charge in the prefit and loss account for the year (see note 5(a)) (32
7.8

Prowision at 31st January 2010

Deferred tax assets of £13 1m (2009 £13 0m) have not beer prowvided for on the basis that the Directers do not assess them as
being recoverable in the foresecable future The main component of the deferred tax asset s unutbsed German losses

lasusd and fron nd an {

Authorised Sully pald Funthestisach Pty ourd

2010 2010 209 (a7

£m fm fm fm

Ordinary shares of £1 each 923 596 923 602
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Capiral Profit and Profit and

Share p redemption Marger loss loss

‘ Group & Company Group & Company “Groun “Grop Company

fm fm fm £m fm

At 31st January 2009 as previously reported 04 17 3 151 1955 BSe

Currency translation adjustments (net of corporation tax) - - - (125) -
Share buyback * - - - {39 139

Cancellation of shares - 06 - - -
Profit for the year e, T s 33

Actuanal gan on pension scheme - - - 82 ~

Associated deferred tax on actuanal gain - - - (23 -

Share—based payment - - ~ 02 02
Dividends paid - - - {16 5) (14 5)

At 31st January 2010 04 179 151 229.5 11.7

The mevger reserve of £15 1m (2009 £15 1m) arses from the adoption of marger accounting in the year ended 31st January 1998 in
relation 1o the Group 1econstiuction which followed the demerger of the Factory Qutlet Centtes The capital redemption reserve

was anginally created in 2003 as a result of the ordinary share buy back

The loss for the year dealt within t-2 profit and loss account of the Campany amounts to £20 1m (2009 - £19 7m} The cumulative
total of goodwall written off against Group profit and loss account reserves in respect of acquisitions prior to the 1st February 1988,
when FRS 10 'Goodwill and Intanaible Assets' was adopted, amounts to £2 1m (2009 - £2 1m) [his relates to acquisitiens since 1st

Fecruary 1983 as information pror to this date 1s not available

* On 10th July 2009 the Company repurchased 601,974 ordinary shares at a price of £6 50 per share These shares represented 1%
of she total share capital and the total cast te the business of the transaction was £3 9m The repurchased shares were

subszequently cancelled

Commitrents by the Group for canital expenditure not provided in the financial statements are

2010 Pt

£m fm

Contracted but not prowided for 52 29
Annual commiments by the Group in respect of non-cancellzble aperating leases are

Lend andl Lard and Plart and Plant 2~

bulidings Bl v, aquipment e pApren

2010 g 2070 e

fm fm £m fm

Expining within one year 43 45 - 02

Expiring between two and five years 308 290 01 08

Expinng after five years 502 539 - -

’ 85,3 874 01 140
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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S

¥ “‘WW‘"’L N e gﬁ;ﬁ i GEE DT
The Group's treasury management policies are outhned in the Finencial Review on pages 16 to 19
a) Currency profile and interest rates
Gross Cash at bank Neat Girss Cast at bark Nxn
barrowings and in hand barrowings s ~wings ard I hoed b rimve In 33
2010 2010 2010 L3 007 g
£m £m fm fm fm m
Currency
Sterling 24 (77.8) 75 4) 172 (59 113
US dollas - {27 3) {27 3) 13 {28 5) (27 2)
Euro 37.2 (8 8) 28.6 175 (142) 33
Other 64 @7 (33) 122 82 40
4560 (123 4) (77 4} 482 (56 8) B8
Barrowngs for hedging purnoses
US dollar - - - 381 - 381
450 {123.4) (77 4) 85 3 (56 8) /95

The Grour's cash deposits compnse deposits placed on money markets at call and overnight rates The Group's entire borrowing
facilities amounting to £170 2m (2009 - {219 5m) are available at floating rates These include the Revolving Credit Facility of
£136 % (2009 - £150 0m) and overdralt facdiies i the UK and overscas totalling £33 7m {2009 - 169 Sm) Under the Revolving
Credit Facihity interest rates are based upon UBOR, fixed depending on the tenor of the loan The interest rates on overdraft
facilities in the UK are based on the UK base rate for stering borrowings and the relevant LIBOR rate for currency borrowings

The interest rates on shont tenm facilities in the USA and Japan are based on local base rates Bank borrowings are secured by a
floating charge over the assets of the Group

Exchange gains on foresgn currency borrowings less deposits were £2 0m (2009 - gam £1 9m) including a gain of £rul (2009 - £nil) relating
to exchange movements on loans providing a hedge 1o offset currency movements ansmg on retranslation of overseas subsidianes

The maturity of the Group's gross borrowings at 31st Januay was as follows

2010 ane

fm {m

In one year or less or on demand 456 0 482
tn more than one year but net more than two years - 381
In more then two years but not more than five years - -
46.0 863

At 31st January the Group had the foliowing undrawn net committed boriowings facilitres available 210 -
ur labs Nl

£m im

Expiring 1n one year 28 1 595
Expiring in more than ong year but not more than wo years 1365 941
164 6 1534

The above =able rellects the undiawn net Lborrewng facls , vhereas i 2067 these weie cusdosed gross

b) Currency exposures, fair values and hedges
The Group has used foreign currency contracts to cover the cuarency exposures an cash flows up to two years forward

The Group does not engage in foreign currency speculatron but covers its future trading requirements through forward exchange
contracts and opilons By necessty this results in some fonard currency commitments at the year end which have been entered
ime at exzhange rates bkely to be relevant at the contract date Due to shart-term fluciuations in exchange rates, the year end
rates will always be different from contract rates
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At 31st January 2010, the foreign comency forward contracts held & therretical far value gan of £6 1m {2009 - gain £8 3my)
The fair value gam on options at 3tst January 2010 was £% 1m (2009 - gain £42 9m) Thirty-scven of the forty-seven contracts held
will mature dunng the year ende 3 319 danuary 2011 The sterling value of the deeals held s £455 7m (2009 ~ 476 4m) Sixty-‘hree
of the seventy-four contracts held at 31st Januany, 2009 have matured end have beon recognised i the profit ana loss secount

The Group opeiates twe defined benefit schemes in the UK, the C&J Clark Penston Fund ithe Fund) and the Clarks Fleaible
Pansion Scheme (the Scheme) A full actuanal valuation of tha Fund was carmed out 2t 5 Apri 2008 and an acwanal report nfthe
Scheme was carried out at 5 Ap~il 2008 These were updeted to 31st January 2010 by 2 quahfied mdependent actuary The Group

opereles a smgle defined benett scheme in the USA, the (&) Clark Company Pension Plan {ike Plan} A full actuanal va vuat on

of the Plan was cained out at st January 2008 and updated to 3st January 2010 by 2 qualified mdependent actuary

Graup Tt
e 2
fm £m
Change in benefit obligation for defined benefit sections
Benefit obligaticn at 1ot Februery 2009 _ 674.6 698 ¢
Cunentsevicecost S - 68 77
Interest cost o - 428 408
Pion particpants' contrbuions T g g
Past service costs -
Acaralgans T T N 8790 (55 4)
Transfet from defined contribution section of the Fund i 02 -
Cumadment. H w i H - 02
Benetts pad (37.0) {36 0
Exrhange rate ad}-ustmenjtgrag scheme T o - T {g“};f T
Benefit obligation at 31st January 2010 7705 6146
Analysis of benefit obligation for defined benefit sections
Plans that are wholly or partly funded T 7702 646
Plans thet are wholly unfunded 03
Total 7705 6716
Change in plan assets for defined benefit sections
Fau value of plan assets at tst Februan, 2009 5118 s141
EXEQE{J return on p!dnma;;ets N - B 310 "33
Actuanal gansi(losses) 951 (1310
?mployer contribution T 2B.4 BEEPY
Member contnbutions 18 29
Benefits caid o o B )
Cxchange rate adjustment on US scheme (29) 126
Fair value of plan assets at 31st January 2010 628 4 5418
Funded status {142 1) {162 8)
Unrecognised past service cost {penefit) - -
Net amount recogmised {142.1) (162 8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

In addition the valie of the assets and ligbihbes held in the d=fined contnbution secoon of the UK Fund smounted 1o F17 8mas
at 3ist January 2010 {2009 - £14 7m) and the value of essets and Labdiiies held in the defined contribution section of the UK
Scheme amounted to {2 2m s at 31st January, 20102009 ~ {1 1m) Dalined contnhution schemes in the US held ascets of £38 3in
as at 31st January 20:0 {2009 - £18 5rv

ot SRS
fm fm
Components of pension cost
CIJ!'rer‘t_s':;\;(_?e cost — defll"e d Dnneﬁ:;:g{?rggwmm_w T - s "“_-__6#5% T —?’7‘7
Contributicr ~ defined contribution scheme 0.5 04
Intoiestcost D T 428 408
Expeced return on plan d55els. (31 0} (362)
Past service cost o e o2 0 -
Effect of curadn.ents - Y
Total pension cost recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 193 128
Actuanal (gains)flosses immediatoly recognised 81) Ihé
Total pension cost recognised In the Statement of Total Recognised Gamns and Losses 8 1) /56
Cumulative amount of azwanal gains immediarely recogrised sinca 1 February 2005 654 135
Movement in deficit during the year
Defict 1n the scheme ot 1t | ebruary 2009 (162 8) (84 8!
Cunertsenica cost T &8  Fn
Cortrioutions o 286 125
Past service costs/curtadmenss oo ommmmmn T “meér o MFO“?\
Net Gnterest costlrreturn on assets {11 8} @
Af?-mr_lal & anflossy T - ¥ (_é—;;r
Exchange rate adiastment on US scherme o 27 m*u %
Deficit in tha scheme at 31st January 2010 {142 1) (162 8)
Associated deferred tax asset
Deterred tax asset 2t ist February 2009 o 486 T
Movemen:s in the year - Profe and Loss Accountisee note 587 7T @ey T o)
Movements in the yea — f?e%ervea o4 -
Movemens on actl aral (c;dl!ﬂ Tieloss 230 231
Exchange rate adustnent on US scheme (10} 10
Deferred tax asset at 3fst January 2010 41.9 484
Net pension liabidity at 1st Fobroary 2009 (114 2) o0 3
Net pension liabibity at 31st January 2010 ) {100 2) (114 2)
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Plan assets
The weighted average asset allocations at tha year end were 25 follows

uK UK Narth Amsnca ot Amene
plan assets rler avsess plan assats plar aesets
200 o) zmo g
Assel category
Lguities 54 70% 50 00% 64 25% 57 50%
Bonds 44.70% 4900% 3575% 47 50%
Cash 0 60% 1 00% - -

10000%  10000% 10000%  10000%

Amounts included in the fair value of assets for
Financial Insiruments -

Property accupred o other assets used - -

To develon the expetied long-ternm rate of return on assets assurmption, the Group consigared the current level of expediea
et ns on rsk free investments (primanly government tonds), the histoncal level of the nsk crervum sssociated with the other
asast classes m which the portfolio s invested, the expectation for future retumis of each asset ass ana the expected “xpunaes
of operating the schemes The axpected return for each asset class was then weighted oased on the target asset allocation to
develop tne expeced long-term rate of relurn on asse's assumption for the portfolio Thus resulted in the selecaon of the 5 %%
assumprior for the year ended 31 January 2010 for the UK scheme and 8 5% for the US scheme

Group o p
2010 ey
£m frm
Actual return on plan assets 1055 37
UK UK Morth Amenca  Mowh ni o
2010 i 2008 FA R
Weighted average assumptions used to determme benefit obhgations o B
Discountrate o T 7T UB75%  6%0% 600% 650%
Rate of ncrease in salanes - Senior Executives 550% b 40% e 5 OO% 500°%
T o ’ ~Others 500%  490%  500%  500%
Rate of INCTEASe IN PeNsIons In payment %Fund i _340% 3 %( % n/a nea
T T . ~Scheme  225% 225,  nfa n/a
Rate of increase n pentions indeferment —————— 380% M(_)_ ___nfa n/a
in}la‘tlon assumption "350% 340% 2 50% 2 50"52"
Waighted average assumptions used
to determine net pension cost for the year end
Discount rate T T 650%  590%  625%  405%
Expacted long-term returm on plan astets 5 90% 5 80% 8 50% 8 50%
Rate of increase in salznes T cemion Executves | 5.A0%  550%  500%  500%
- Others 4.90% 500% 5.00% 5 00%
Rate of Increase :rT_;{)Er;s;En—; In pavment — Fund 330% 350% nfa  nla
—Scheme 225% 225% n/a r/a
Rate of mcrease in pensions In deferment 3 40% 350% nfa  nia
Inftanon assumghion 3.40% 350% 2 50% 2 50%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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FL

*
e e

UK U’ North Americz AL D
Ho P vl 2010 LU
Weighted average life expectancy for mortahty
tables used to determine benefit obligations

Membar age 65 (current life expectancy) - Male 203 03 17 ¢ 179
T T T ~Female R - A

Mamber age 45 {life expectancy at age 65) - Male 213 213 17.9 179

- Female 241 241 213 213

Five year history

UK ug in U= Un

2010 2 oy 20 s

£m fm fm fro fm

Benefit obhgation at 31st January 2010 (7100} (617 D {658 9} (563 3 (6717)

Fair valie of plan assets at 31st Januars 2010 56800 4829 5820 5599 5433

Deficst i the scheme {120.0} {1350 769 (1034 {128 4)

Related deferred tax asset 33.6 378 215 %0 340

Net pension liability (86 4) (97 2) {554) {74 4) 92 4

North America Miyth penn Mot Amige Moanth Anten a Neth Arar ey

2010 ALY 2n0g Pakt] 1

fm fm frn fm fm

Benefit ohligation at 31st January 2010 (60 5} 567 {490 (38D (41 &)

Fair value of plan assets at 31st January 2010 38.4 289 21 315 312

Deficit 1 the scheme 22 1) {27 8) 79 &7 104

Related deferred tax asset B3 108 31 26 40

Net pension liabihity {13 8) (170 {48 G (& 4}

ot s e "o eria

frn im fm fm fm

Beneht obligation at 31st Januan, 2010 (770.5) (674 6) (698 9) o s (713 3

Fair value of plan assets at 31st Jaruary 2010 628.4 5118 6141 5914 5745

Deficit in the scheme (142 1) (1562 8) {84 8} (101 (138 8)

Related deferred tax asset 419 4B 6 246 316 400

Net pension hability {100 2) {114 2} 0 2) {78 5 {98 8)

Actual return less expected returm on scheme assets (131.0) (1310} (20 4) 2 &) 699

Percentage of year-end scheme assets (20 8%) (25 6%) 3 3%) (0 4%) 12 2%

Expenence (losses)/gains arising on scheme habilities 55 55 {49 11 57

Percantace of year-end scheme lizbilities 07% 0 8% {0 7%) 0 2% {0 8%)

Contnbutions

Under the cunent schedule of contributions the Group expects to contribute £12 5m to the UK schames and $3 Om to the US

schemes 1 the year ended 31 January 2011

]




2 Food
Group Group Campany Compar
2010 2% 2010 2o
fm frn fm fm
Other guatantess and indemnties 04 03 - -
0.4 03 - -

Controf
The Group hokding company = C&J Clark Limited  As indicated in the Corporate Governance statement on pages 22 10 23,
family members hold 80 3% of the company's ordinary shares

Transactions with directors and officers
There were no wansactions with directors and officers durning the year

Transactions with subsidiaries
The Grougp has taken advantage of the exemptions i FRS 8 ‘Related Party Transactions’ in respect of transactions with
subsidiartes, agente, distibutors and fianchisees

'me, E T
SR SR Bl 18
dyRERamigel 1o

T

2

2010 o
£m fm
Operating profit before exceptional items 7.4 93
Exceptional costs 33 -
941 933
Deoreaiation and impairments 275 283
Decrease/{increasel in land held for resale L . ) 29 N1y
Decrease/(increasa) n stocks ) R - T T2 T ___“_é_&)_
Decrease?{increase) in debtars 42 (4 4}
Imcrease/{decrease) in creditors 190 26 1N
increase/{decrease] in provisions 129 (2 &
Exchange losses/{gains) on currency bank accounts 20 (9
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 19 18
f.oss on sale of fixed asset investments - 08
Penston deficit funding (20 3) 50
Difierence between pension charge and cash contnbutions {12) -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1712 595
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Continued

ki sﬁ?é%g%}d L L
2010 ke
fm fm
a) Returns on invastrents and serviung of finance
Interest recerved - 07
Interest paid {19) 32)
Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance 1.9 25
b) Cap:tal expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assots {19 0} (327
Sale of tangible fixed assets 01 04
Additions to mnvestments {see nole 10a) {07 -
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment {19 &)~ (33 1}
¢} Binancing
(Decrease)/increase in Jong-termn bank loans {41 9) 229
Decrease In bank loans {18 2) &0
{Decrease)/increase in debt (60 1) 14 9
Sale of own shares - 0
Share buyhack {39 (3%
Net cash {(cutflow)/inflow from financing {64 0) 111

At Tst February

Tronslabior At 318t January

X Frash flow ditferen-es 2010

fm fm fm £fm

Cash at bank and 1 hand ) 56 8 635 31 123 4
Bankoverdrafts T T T agay 47 09 (860)
264 48 8 22 774

Bank loans {17 8) 182 04 -
Long-term loans {38 1) 419 {38 -
{29 5) 08¢ Zd 77.4

C&] Clark Limited and Subsidiaries

The following subsichanes are those contnbuting mest significantly te the profits and the assets of the Grouo and 15 not 2

complete list of all subsidianas All are wholly-owned and are engaged in the shoe trace

Country of  Ordinary
Incorporation shares

Owned wia subsidiary undertakings
C&J Clerk International Limited vading as Clarks Inteinational England f each
Clarks Companies North Arernca USA  US S cach
Clarks Shees verriebs GmbH Germary € each
Clarks Shoes Benelux BY Holland € each
Clarks Japan Company Limited Japan ¥ each
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Group Financial Record

2010 A Fey Auy nng
{re 4 aredt westyterd) el
Notes fm Em im Em im
Group trading results for the year ended 31st January
Total Group turnover 1,1735 11220 10530 972/ 9214
Turnover from continuing aciivities 1 1.1735 11220 1,035 6 G397 3 8854
Profit before interest and exceptional tems 97 4 933 852 809 821
Exceptional items before taxation 15 05 30! 49 39
Profit beiore imterest and after excepbonal items 98¢ 938 792 760 782
Net intesest (138) 70 (41} (6 &) 63
Proft befure tax and after exceptional tems 851 B&8B 751 67 4 9
Profit atter tax 608 620 517 483 489
Group financial position at 31st January
Capital employed 3531 443 5 3460 1 3588 3378
Net (cash)/borrowings {77 4} 295 191 337 256
Fauily shareholders' funds 3225 2885 2692 2357 2013
Ratios
Retun on sales 2 8 3% 8 3% 8 2% B 6% 9 3%
Return on capital employed 3 27.6% 21 0% 237% 22 5% 24 3%
Net assets pet ordinary share 4 £541 479 £4 43 £384 E325
Net borrowngs/equity {24.0%) 10 2% 1% 143% 127%
Basic earnings per ordinary share 5 101 ép 102 6p 84 7p 78 5p 9 0p
Basic earmings pe- ordinary share belore exceptional items ¢8 3p 101 8p 93 2p 84 3p 84 4p
Dividends paid dunng the vear per ordinary share 6 27 5p 265p 240p 210p 240p
Dwidenc cover 7 37 3% 35 33 33
Interest cover 8 72 134 193 115 124

(o &3

~d

~G o

Turrover from continuing operations in all years excludes the turnover generated by the Elefanien group of companies
and Ravel

Return on sales s the profit before ntelest and exceptional stems expressed as @ percentage of umover fram
continuing actvities

Return on capitai employed is the orofit before interest and exceprional items expressed as a percentage of capital
employed at the year end

Net assets per ordinary share 1s the amount of the equity shareholders' funds dvided by the number of ordinary
shares in 1ssue

Basic earnings per ordinzry share have been calculated as per note 7 in the notes to the financial statements
Dividends paid duning the year per ordinary share reflect the actual paymen.s made dunng the year rather than the
didend declared in respect of the year in accordance with FRS 21 'Events after the Balance Shest date’

Dridend caver s profi aflter 1ax diaded by dividends paid

tnterest cover 15 the profit before interest dnided by nat interest

2006, 2007 anc 2008 restatements relate to Elefanten, Ravel and FR517 'Retirement Renefits’ acjustments made

m prior perinds
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Facts at your Fingertips

Rewt of

ux America Europw tha wWorld Group
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
Turnover (fmillions) 5 397 121 65 1,174
Employees (number ot year-end}* 11,380 1,827 75 144 13,426
Paws sold {midlians) 283 157 17 o7 44 4
Shops
Clarks s - ki - 399
Concessions 57 - - T L T sy
Factary shapping outlets 42 83 2 - 127
Bostonan/Manover - 34 - - 34
Clarks of England - 125 - - 125
Total owned shops 497 242 3 - 742
Franchise slores 107 - - - 107
International Clarks shops ** - - 122 74 196
Total shops 604 242 125 74 1,045
ftaat of
UK Erwrica Europe the World Crgup
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
Turnover {fmillions) 585 158 119 &0 1,127
Employees (number at year-end} 11,350 1,821 7 65 13,308
Pairs sald (rullions) 302 167 17 0é 492
Shops i
Clarks K - 1 - 400
Concessions 58 - - . 58
Factory shopping outiets 44 82 2 - 128
Bostonian/Hanover - 35 ~ - 36
Clarks of England - 117 - - 17
Total owned shops 501 235 3 - 739
Franchse stores 103 - - - 103
Tnternatonal Clarks shops = T ) 1 5 Y
lotal shops 504 235 104 57 1,000

* Including part ime employees

**Monobranded parmership stores using the ‘glabal’ shoplic format

This report was crinted on paper which 1s made of 50% recycled mastenals and 50% From sustanable sourcas
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C&J Clark Limited
Company number 3314066
40 High Street, Street,
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